
301 East Belt Boulevard • Richmond, VA  23224 

MEETING 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

GRTC Transit System 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the GRTC Transit System, Old Dominion 
Transit Management Company (ODTMC), and RideFinders will be held concurrently at 8:00 
a.m. on November 16, 2021.  To protect the safety of meeting attendees, this meeting will be 
conducted through electronic communication means pursuant to and in compliance with City of 
Richmond Ordinance No. 2020-093, adopted April 9, 2020. 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order & Introductions

II. Public Comments

III. GRTC Board of Directors

Action Items

A. Annual Shareholder Meeting Report / Board Membership – Ben Campbell (Page 3)
B. Nominations and Elections of Board Officers – George Braxton (Page 4)

IV. Approval of Board Minutes – October 26, 2021 (Pages 5-11)

V. Financial and Administrative Report – John Zinzarella, CFO

Discussion/Information Items

A. September 2021 Financials – John Zinzarella (Pages 12-32)
B. Recent and Upcoming Procurements – Tonya Thompson (Pages 33-34)

Action Items 
A. RideFinders FY2021 Financial Audit – Leslie Roberts of Brown, Edwards & Company      

(Pages 35-63)
B. GRTC FY2021 Financial Audit – Leslie Roberts of Brown, Edwards & Company    

(Pages 64-144)

VI. Development and Engagement Report – Adrienne Torres, CDO

Discussion/Information Items

A. Transit History Museum Update – Carrie Rose Pace (Page 145)
B. FY21 Annual Report – Carrie Rose Pace (Page 146)
C. City of Richmond Property Lease for Temporary Transfer Center – McGregor Sheppard/

Julie Timm (Pages 147-151)



301 East Belt Boulevard • Richmond, VA  23224 

Action Items 
A. Transit Asset Management Plan Update – McGregor Sheppard (Pages 152-158)
B. “Now Hiring” Media Buy – Carrie Rose Pace (Pages 159-161)

VII. Operations and Maintenance Report – Sheryl Adams, COO 

Discussion/Information Items

A. Operating Performance – Tim Barham (Pages 162-172)
B. Ridership Performance – Patricia Robinson (Pages 173-175)
C. Safety Performance – Tony Carter (Pages 176-178)
D. Maintenance Performance – Tony Byrd (Page 179)

Action Items 
A. UBER Late Night Service Pilot – Tim Barham (Page 180)
B. First Transit Renewal – Tim Barham (Pages 181-182)
C. Hastus Annual Renewal – Rob Taggart (Pages 183-184)

VIII. Chief Executive Officer’s Report – Julie Timm

IX. Chairperson Report – Ben Campbell

X. Other Business

XI. Adjourn
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: GRTC Shareholders Meeting 

UPDATE: 

The GRTC Annual Shareholders meeting was held on November 12, 2021, at GRTC. 
The City of Richmond was represented by City Council President, Cynthia I. Newbille, 
and the County of Chesterfield was represented by County Administrator, Dr. Joseph P. 
Casey. 

The City of Richmond reappointed Benjamin P. Campbell, George P. Braxton, and 
Eldridge F. Coles. The County of Chesterfield reappointed Gary Armstrong, Ian Millikan, 
and Daniel K. Smith.  

Their term will be held until October 2022. 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Nominations and Election of Board Officers 

UPDATE: 

Mr. Braxton is Chair of the Nominating Committee for the GRTC Board of Directors. 
Nominations and Election of Board Officers will be held during today’s meeting. 
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MINUTES 
OCTOBER 26, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM 

Members Present: Benjamin P. Campbell, Chair 
Gary Armstrong, Vice Chair 
Eldridge Coles, Secretary/Treasurer 
George P. Braxton 
Ian Millikan 
Daniel K. Smith 

Others: Bonnie Ashley, General Counsel 
Julie Timm, Chief Executive Officer 
Sheryl Adams, Chief of Staff 
John Zinzarella, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
Tim Barham, Chief of Transit Operations 
Tony Byrd, Director of Maintenance 
Anthony Carter, Director of Risk Management 
Carrie Rose Pace, Director of Communications 
Rob Taggart, Director of Information Technology 
Tonya Thompson, Director of Procurement 
Patricia Robinson, Acting Director of Scheduling and Planning 
McGregor Sheppard, Capital Improvement Program Manager 

The meeting of the Board of Directors of the GRTC Transit System, Old Dominion Transit 
Management Company (ODTMC), and RideFinders was called to order at 8AM, September 21, 
2021, by the Chair, Mr. Campbell. To protect the safety of meeting attendees, this meeting was 
conducted through electronic communication means pursuant to and in compliance with City of 
Richmond Ordinance No. 2020-093, adopted April 9, 2020. This meeting was open to 
participation through electronic communication means by the public and closed to in-person 
participation by the public. Necessary GRTC Administrative Staff and presenters assembled 
electronically for this meeting, and all GRTC Board of Directors participated by videoconference 
via RingCentral. A quorum was present. 

Public Comments - For the benefit of all attendees, Ms. Carrie Rose Pace explained how to 
participate in public comment at Board Meetings.  

Video and audio of Board Meetings are streamed live online and recorded for later viewing at 
GRTC’s YouTube channel at youtube.com/user/ridegrtc. Board Meeting notices, agendas and 
packets are available at GRTC’s website ridegrtc.com by clicking on Stats & Reports in the top 
navigation bar and selecting the first option in the drop-down menu, Board Reports. Citizens are 
welcome to provide their comments in writing in advance to carrie.rosepace@ridegrtc.com. The 
person responsible for receiving comments in writing is Carrie Rose Pace, Director of 
Communications. All written comments received via email prior to 5:00 p.m. on the day 
preceding a meeting will be provided to all members of the Board the night before the meeting 
and will be included in the minutes of the meeting. During the Public Comments portion of the 
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agenda, Carrie Rose Pace will read all comments received by the submission deadline, 
following the two-minute speaking time limit normally observed in Board Meetings.  

Public Comments - There were no public comments. 

Approval of Minutes – Mr. Coles motioned to approve the September 21, 2021, Board 
meeting minutes, Mr. Armstrong seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 

Development and Engagement Report – Adrienne Torres, CDO 

Award Won by Tabitha Benjamin – Carrie Rose Pace 

GRTC Bus Operator Tabitha Benjamin was recognized by the Virginia Transit Association 
Awards Committee as one of the recipients of the Virginia Transit Association’s 2021 VTA 
Unsung Hero Award. The Unsung Hero Award is presented to an individual who has 
distinguished themself in the past year as an exceptional transit staff member. Awardees 
demonstrate excellence in their professional capacity that is evident to their supervisors, co-
workers, customers, or to their larger community. VTA says given the unique challenges that we 
have all faced over the last 18 months, Tabitha’s perseverance and success were noticed. 
Tabitha was also featured by VTA in the recent video series “Faces of Transit.”  Tabitha was 
recognized at the Awards Luncheon during the 2021 VTA Annual Conference on September 29. 

Recruitment Award – Carrie Rose Pace 

At the Virginia Transit Association’s 2021 Annual Transit Conference, the winner of VTA’s 
Outstanding Public Transportation Marketing Award is GRTC Transit System, who submitted 
their “Now Hiring” campaign. This campaign was a multi-media, multi-year campaign created to 
recruit bus operators and mechanics, including during the pandemic. Three factors contributed 
to the success of the campaign—video and digital advertising as well as a narrative thread of 
storytelling.  

The “Now Hiring” campaign was created to address a growing need at GRTC to hire qualified 
bus operators and mechanics. Video advertising allowed GRTC to reach a large audience while 
digital advertising targeted a specific audience related to transit. Through storytelling, GRTC 
created a compelling and powerful campaign that resulted in hundreds of interested candidates 
daily. GRTC has hired more than 100 new employees since 2019.  

The GRTC Marketing Team was formally recognized at the Awards Luncheon during the 2021 
Annual Conference on September 29. This is the 4th year in a row our Marketing team has won 
this award!  

Operations and Maintenance Report – Sheryl Adams, COO 

Operating Performance – Tim Barham 

• The on-time performance for fixed route for September is 65.58%.
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• Absenteeism rate is down to 15.23% for September.

• Lost trips for September are up to 2,123 and operated 95.82% of scheduled trips. During the
schedule change, the number of runs was reduced to 215 to try and offset the number of
manpower issues; however, what resulted was what we call “trippers” that had to be covered
each day and as a result we have had a higher number of open work each day that needed
to be covered. We are still using overtime and supervisors to help with coverage.

• Customer Complaints:  64 Valid complaints.

• On-time performance for specialized transportation was 82.48%. We have been discussing
this with First Transit and they have brought on UZURV to help with the capacity restraints,
which should improve the OTP.

• Currently, we have 257 full-time Operators and 20 part-time Operators. Six Operators
graduated and are in revenue service. Eleven started yesterday in a new class.

Ridership Performance – Patricia Robinson 

Total fixed route ridership for the month of September is 720,673 and the local fixed route 
ridership for September is 563,040, which is up 2.32% from August, and up 4.5% from 
September 2020 we are within 1% of our pre-COVID ridership numbers. Express Routes are 
down 33.30% from August 2021; this is a result of the Delta variant and the end of reporting for 
the consolidation of the Henrico Express routes.  

Quarterly Performance – Patricia Robinson 

The 1st Quarter Performance Metric Report provides a snapshot of system performance at the 
category and route level. This report includes trend analysis of performance. This tool plays a 
key role in identifying routes that are underperforming and may need schedule adjustments as 
well as routes that are high performers. 

The quarterly report includes trend analysis of performance compared to Quarter 4. This tool 
plays a key role in identifying routes that are underperforming and may need schedule 
adjustments, as well as highlighting routes that are high performance. For the BRT, there was 
an increase in ridership of 19%, VCU students returned in August. In the Arterial category, Ms. 
Robinson included ridership, hours, and miles and totaled the ridership at 1,283,365. The On-
Time Performance (OTP) is defined as a bus leaving a predetermined bus stop (timepoint) 
along its route within a time that is no more than 1 minute earlier and no more than 5 minutes 
later than a published scheduled time. For Quarter 1 the System performance is 66% which 
compared to Quarter 4 remains the same. 

Safety Performance – Tony Carter 

• There were 40 external events during the month of September, up from 37 in August.

• There were 29 non-preventable events during the month of August, up from 23 in August.

• There were 11 preventable events for the month of September, down from 14 in August.

• There were zero passenger incidents with Specialized Transportation in September.

• There were five traffic incidents with Specialized Transportation in August; two were
preventable and three were non-preventable. The two preventable incidents were minor
accidents with fixed objects where the bus hit a sign or tree branch.
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• Monica Carter was promoted to Safety and Service Compliance Manager.

• Robert Quarles has been promoted from Operator to the new Coach Trainer.

Maintenance Performance – Tony Byrd 

Our KPI’s for the month of September were 6,503 miles between road calls, which meets and 
exceeds our goal of 5,200. Our preventive maintenance for the month of September was at 63% 
with a goal of 80%. Currently, 26% of the fixed route fleet (21 buses) and 28% of the paratransit 
fleet (26 vans) are out of service repairs with a spare ratio of 30%. We have been having 
conversations with the City and Greyhound about maintenance help and will continue those 
conversations. Manpower is low; however, we have hired three new technicians. 

December Service Adjustments – Julie Timm/Patricia Robinson 

During the 2021 September GRTC Board meeting, staff provided information to the board 
regarding staffing shortages, planned/proposed recovery actions, and ongoing impacts to 
service reliability. 

Ms. Timm provided an update on the status of recovery actions and a proposed service 
adjustment for December to protect transit services and restore service reliability. This plan 
includes modest service adjustments to low ridership routes and proposed temporary contracts 
with mobility service providers to provide late night and early morning on-demand coverage. 

Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors approve the recommended service changes for 
implementation in December 2021, and further, that the Board approves the CEO to make 
minor adjustments to the plan to balance available staff and vehicles and maximize service 
coverage for all riders. Mr. Armstrong motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Braxton seconded, 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

Clever Device CAD AVL Equipment – 14 Fixed Route Vehicles – Rob Taggart 

In November 2006, the Board of Directors authorized the CEO to award a contract to Clever 
Devices for the installation of Clever’s Advanced Communication System (ACS). This 
technology has allowed GRTC to better manage its fixed route operations. When new buses are 
ordered it is necessary to add the ACS technology so that operations maintain optimal 
performance. In August 2020, the Board of Directors authorized the CEO to purchase 29 
additional fixed route vehicles. Staff plans to receive 14 of the 29 buses ordered by the end of 
October 2021. As a result, staff obtained a quote from Clever Devices for retrofitting the vehicles 
with necessary equipment. This purchase is funded with federal, state, and local funds. 

Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to issue a purchase order to 
Clever Devices in the amount of $143,099 for the purchase and installation of CAD/AVL 
equipment for 14 vehicles. Mr. Armstrong motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Smith 
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
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Onboard Video and Audio Camera Equipment – Rob Taggart 

In August 2020, the Board authorized the CEO to issue a purchase order to Gillig to 
manufacture 29 fixed route buses. In June 2020, the Board authorized the CEO to issue a 
purchase order to Gillig to replace the one Pulse vehicle. 

GRTC equips all vehicles with onboard cameras to visually and audibly monitor and record 
events happening in and around the vehicles. This purchase includes cameras, digital video 
recorders and a hard disk player for each of 15 vehicles. The total cost for cameras, 
accessories and warranty is $140,234. This purchase is fully funded with federal, state, and 
local funds.  

Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to issue a purchase order to 
Luminator (Apollo Video Technology) in the amount of $140,234 for the purchase and 
installation of onboard camera equipment for 14 fixed route vehicles and 1 Pulse vehicle. Mr. 
Millikan motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Braxton seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

Financial and Administrative Report – John Zinzarella, CFO 

August Financial Report – John Zinzarella 

Source of Funds – This item details GRTC self-generated funds and optional subsidies (local, 
state, and federal). Revenues are unfavorable versus budget by $1.18M or 11.2% because of 
timing of spending and submission of expenses for federal reimbursement versus budget 
assumptions $0.97M.  

Operating Expenses are favorable versus budget by $568.1k or 5.72% because of: 

• Favorable labor expenses of $201.9k because of the favorable headcount versus budget in
transportation and equipment and facility maintenance groups and higher than budgeted
vacancy factor in the general and administrative groups offset by the operator and
maintenance pension expense associated with the COVID Bonus payments.

• Favorable purchased services of $178.7k because of timing of building maintenance versus
budget calendarization.

• Favorable materials and supplies of $215.8k because of timing of purchases versus budget
calendarization.

• Unfavorable casualties and liability expense is because of recording annual provision for
uninsured losses.

• Favorable purchased transportation services of $167.7k because of actual demand differing
from budgetary assumptions.

Recent and Upcoming Procurements – Tonya Thompson 

Ms. Thompson reviewed the five new projects that were added to this month’s upcoming 
procurement list, and those projects are 1) Specialized Transportation Consultant; 2) CARE ON-
DEMAND and Fixed Route Transportation Services; 3) Portable Restroom Facilities; 4) “Now 
Hiring” Media Buys; and 5) On-Call Marketing Services. 
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Suspension of Advertising Program – Julie Timm/Carrie Rose Pace 

Across the nation, and most notably in the Supreme Court, there have been numerous judicial 
rulings regarding advertising on transit vehicles and the interpretation of advertising polices by 
Transit Agencies in approving or denying specific advertisements. These rulings have caused 
staff to review the GRTC advertising policy and program. After consultation with legal counsel, 
GRTC staff believes it is prudent to suspend all advertising until the policy can be fully reviewed 
for compatibility and compliance with recent court rulings.  

GRTC proposes to suspend all new advertising and to phase out all current advertising on all 
buses as their contracts expire. This would include contracts with advertising agencies and with 
existing GRTC sponsorships. GRTC will continue to use buses to promote GRTC and as a 
forum of Government speech aligned with our community values and mobility services. As 
GRTC reviews the advertising policy, staff will provide the Board with recommendations for a 
new policy including sponsorship programs to begin as soon as FY2023. 

Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors approve the suspension of the GRTC Vehicle 
Advertising Program while staff studies the impacts of recent and pending court rulings. After 
discussions, Mr. Braxton motioned to grant staff’s request and added that staff give an update 
or make a recommendation no later than the January 2022 Board meeting, Mr. Armstrong 
seconded, and the motion passed with one abstention. 

Mr. Braxton departed the meeting. 

Budget Amendment for Designated Uses of Federal Covid Relief Funding – Julie Timm 

GRTC received three rounds of federal relief dollars to support operations and capital needs for 
use during and after the COVID pandemic. GRTC received CARES Act - $32.2M; CRRSA - 
$3.3M; and ARPA - $29.2M.  

Ms. Timm updated the Board on the status of Board-approved uses of federal relief funding 
under the adopted FY2022 budget. CARES Act: Zero Fares in FY22 - $3,220,463; CRRSA: 
Media Campaign and Recruitment Pay for Staffing Shortages - $1,400,000; CRRSA: Cleaning 
and Sanitation Supplies and Services - $1,895,027; and ARPA: Zero Fares in FY22 - 
$3,000,000. 

She also provided a proposed plan for uses of the remaining unbudgeted funds to be approved 
once more detailed information is completed on scope and need.  

Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors approve, confirm, and amend the GRTC FY2022 
Operations Budget to allow for use of Federal Relief dollars as follows: 

• CARES Act: Zero Fares in FY2022 $3,220,463 

• CRRSA: Media Campaign and Recruitment Pay for Staffing Shortages $1,400,000 

• CRRSA: Cleaning and Sanitation Supplies and Services $1,895,027 

• ARPA: Zero Fares in FY2022 $3,000,000 

• ARPA: FY2022 Retention/Vaccine Pay  $3,562,500 

• ARPA: FY2022 Possible Advertising Revenue Loss $250,000 
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Mr. Smith motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Armstrong seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

Chief Executive Officer’s Report – Julie Timm 

• Vaccine Mandate – Occupational Safety & Health Administration and Department of Labor &
Industry have advanced their recommendation for the vaccine mandate to federal
leadership. GRTC is planning to announce our vaccine mandate today and will be effective
November 24. This would mean that anyone getting the Pfizer or Moderna Vaccine will need
to get their 1st shot by November 2 or risk suspension or termination.

Per the Board’s action today, employees will be provided relief with pay from their scheduled
work time after their vaccination and their booster vaccination equivalent to their normal
scheduled duties. This would account for the possible illness after vaccination. Alternately,
employees that do not feel ill, will receive that as a payout. With proof of full vaccination,
employees will receive a bonus of $500 and with proof of the 1st vaccine booster employees
will receive another $500. Should OSHA or DOLI rules require any updates to the policy, we
will work closely and quickly with our team to enact those rules and make any necessary
changes.

• Board Meetings – Starting in January 2022, our Board meetings will likely be in person. If we
do have a larger Board or more in attendance, we will no longer be able to meet here at
GRTC. We do have a possible location offsite in the Richmond region that would be able to
accommodate us and the public.

Chairperson Report – Ben Campbell 

Mr. Campbell stated that it is his personal commitment and the commitment of GRTC that every 
person who has necessary transportation through GRTC be served regardless of what we must 
do to make that happen.  

Other Business 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:15AM. 

APPROVED: 

Benjamin P. Campbell, Chair 

Date 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: September 2021 Financial Report 

BACKGROUND 

Attached is the Financial Report for the month ended September 2021.  John

Zinzarella will highlight the key points. 

12



Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

4100 Directly Generated Funds 439,543.47$        247,928.08$   191,615.39$   769,971.84$   743,784.25$   26,187.59$     
4110 Total Passenger Fares 138,076.00   138,076.00   - 341,902.54 414,228.00   (72,325.46)    
4120 Park and Ride Parking Revenues -    -    - - -    -    
4130 Non Public Transportation Revenue -    -    - - -    -    
4140 Auxiliary Transportation Revenue 261,454.41   50,416.67  211,037.74   308,119.41   151,250.00   156,869.41   
4150 Other Agency Revenues 40,013.06  59,435.42  (19,422.36)    119,949.89   178,306.25   (58,356.36)    

-    -    -    -    -    -    
4170 Subsidy from Other Sectors of Operations -    -    -    -    -    -    
4180 Extraordinary or Special Items -    -    -    -    -    -    
4190 Total Recoveries -    -    -    -    -    -    

4200 Directly Generated Dedicated Funds

4300 Local Government Funds 2,692,771.72$    2,690,244.72$    2,527.00$    8,073,652.16$    8,070,734.15$    2,918.01$    
4310 General Revenues of the Local Government 2,692,771.72  2,690,244.72  2,527.00   8,073,652.16  8,070,734.15  2,918.01   

4400 State Government Funds 1,003,635.00$    1,025,400.50$    (21,765.50)$    3,014,741.00$    3,076,201.49$    (61,460.48)$    
4410 General Revenues of the State Government 1,003,635.00  1,025,400.50  (21,765.50)    3,014,741.00  3,076,201.49  (61,460.48)    

4500 Federal Funds 8,000.00$    1,304,407.08$    (1,296,407.08)$   1,641,856.62$    3,913,221.25$    (2,271,364.63)$   
5307 FTA Urbanized Area Formula Program 8,000.00   609,654.42   (601,654.42)  142,759.00   1,828,963.25  (1,686,204.25)    
5307 CARES Act Urbanized Area Program Funds - 694,752.67 (694,752.67)  1,499,097.62  2,084,258.00  (585,160.38)  

4600 Non Added Revenues 2,500.00$    -$  2,500.00$    2,500.00$    -$  2,500.00$    
4630 Sales and Disposals of Assets 2,500.00   - 2,500.00 2,500.00   - 2,500.00 

Total Sources of Funds 4,146,450.19$    5,267,980.38$    (1,121,530.19)$   13,502,721.62$  15,803,941.13$  (2,301,219.51)$   

4160 Revenues Accrued Through a 
Purchased Transporation Agreement

Month Ended September 30, 2021 Year to Date September 30, 2021

GRTC Transit System
Source of Funds

Year to Date September 30, 2021 

13



GRTC Transit System 
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Revenues are unfavorable versus budget by $2.30M or 14.56% as a result of: 

• Favorable operating expenses year to date, combined with timing of spending versus the budget

assumptions for federal reimbursement $2.27M.

Source of Funds Budget Actual
Over (Under)

% of 

Budget

4100 Directly Generated Funds 743,784.25$        769,971.84$        26,187.59$    3.52%

4200 Directly Generated Dedicated Funds - - - n/a

4300 Local Government Funds 8,070,734.15      8,073,652.16      2,918.01              0.04%

4400 State Government Funds 3,076,201.49      3,014,741.00      (61,460.48)          -2.00%

4500 Federal Funds 3,913,221.25      1,641,856.62      (2,271,364.63)    -58.04%

4600 Non Added Revenues - 2,500.00 2,500.00              n/a

15,803,941.13$  13,502,721.62$  (2,301,219.51)$  -14.56%
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Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR 6,731,164.29$     6,721,930.17$     (9,234.12)$           952,719.97$       1,007,734.56$    55,014.59$         294,586.70$       357,324.55$       62,737.85$         1,633,940.20$     1,961,220.16$     327,279.96$       9,612,411.16$     10,048,209.44$   435,798.28$       
01. Operator Salaries and Wages 3,565,912.07       3,693,413.81       127,501.74          -                      -                      -                      3,565,912.07       3,693,413.81       127,501.74         
02. Operator's Paid Absences 452,160.93          454,036.59          1,875.66              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      452,160.93          454,036.59          1,875.66             

Operator Vacation 189,799.54          179,405.52          (10,394.02)           -                      -                      -                      189,799.54          179,405.52          (10,394.02)          
Operator Sick 126,870.79          107,251.27          (19,619.52)           -                      -                      -                      126,870.79          107,251.27          (19,619.52)          
Holiday 135,490.60          167,379.81          31,889.21            -                      -                      -                      135,490.60          167,379.81          31,889.21           
Operator FMLA or other leave -                        -                        -                        

447,696.82          490,297.87          42,601.05            574,984.45         605,043.58         30,059.13           197,497.44         259,872.31         62,374.87           1,134,409.17       1,290,716.63       156,307.46         2,354,587.88       2,645,930.40       291,342.52         

Dispatch 78,436.58            84,389.80            5,953.22              -                      -                      -                      78,436.58            84,389.80            5,953.22             
Operations Supervision 367,546.48          405,908.08          38,361.60            -                      -                      -                      367,546.48          405,908.08          38,361.60           

Maintenance -                        574,984.45         605,043.58         30,059.13           197,497.44         259,872.31         62,374.87           -                      772,481.89          864,915.89          92,434.00           
Administration 1,713.76              -                        (1,713.76)             -                      -                      1,134,409.17       1,290,716.63       156,307.46         1,136,122.93       1,290,716.63       154,593.70         

-                        -                        -                        52,008.95           69,230.77           17,221.82           19,000.92           -                      (19,000.92)          -                        -                        -                      71,009.87            69,230.77            (1,779.10)            

Vacation -                        27,980.40           -                      (27,980.40)          7,231.04             -                      (7,231.04)            -                      35,211.44            -                        (35,211.44)          
Sick -                        12,240.15           69,230.77           56,990.62           5,804.84             -                      (5,804.84)            -                      18,044.99            69,230.77            51,185.78           
Holiday -                        11,788.40           -                      (11,788.40)          5,965.04             -                      (5,965.04)            -                      17,753.44            -                        (17,753.44)          
FMLA or other leave -                        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      
05. Fringe Benefits 2,265,394.47       2,084,181.90       (181,212.57)         325,726.57         333,460.21         7,733.64             78,088.34           97,452.24           19,363.90           499,531.03          670,503.52          170,972.49         3,168,740.41       3,185,597.87       16,857.46           

Employment Taxes 320,474.21          333,494.59          13,020.38            45,910.72           48,229.60           2,318.88             15,769.56           20,715.10           4,945.54             90,579.05            102,886.40          12,307.34           472,733.54          505,325.69          32,592.15           
Health and Welfare Expenses 1,140,219.24       1,161,153.78       20,934.54            163,346.34         167,924.73         4,578.38             56,106.71           72,125.36           16,018.65           322,272.35          358,227.48          35,955.13           1,681,944.64       1,759,431.34       77,486.70           
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans 679,361.05          507,324.43          (172,036.62)         94,669.04           97,073.00           2,403.95             282.37                -                      (282.37)               52,619.86            186,484.18          133,864.32         826,932.32          790,881.61          (36,050.71)          
Workers Compensation 120,505.55          74,245.47            (46,260.08)           17,263.47           10,737.29           (6,526.18)            5,929.71             4,611.78             (1,317.93)            34,059.77            22,905.46            (11,154.31)          177,758.50          112,500.00          (65,258.50)          
Other Fringe Beneftits 4,834.42              7,963.64              3,129.22              4,536.99             9,495.59             4,958.60             -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      9,371.41              17,459.23            8,087.82             
5020. SERVICES 7,522.92$            15,000.00$          7,477.08$            -$                    -$                    -$                    152,094.28$       341,525.00$       189,430.72$       318,959.94$        263,008.50$        (55,951.44)$        478,577.14$        619,533.50$        140,956.36$       
03. Professional and Technical Services (751.08)                -                        751.08                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      209,010.24          88,285.00            (120,725.24)        208,259.16          88,285.00            (119,974.16)        

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services (751.08)                -                        751.08                  -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      (751.08)                -                        751.08                
Audit Fees -                        -                      -                      11,900.00            15,000.00            3,100.00             11,900.00            15,000.00            3,100.00             
Legal Fees -                        -                      -                      5,914.20              1,250.00              (4,664.20)            5,914.20              1,250.00              (4,664.20)            

Human Resources Consulting -                        -                      -                      13,050.00            12,285.00            (765.00)               13,050.00            12,285.00            (765.00)               
Planning and Scheduling Consulting -                        -                      -                      67,290.40            11,750.00            (55,540.40)          67,290.40            11,750.00            (55,540.40)          

Computer Consulting -                        -                      -                      -                        3,000.00              3,000.00             -                        3,000.00              3,000.00             
Advertising and Promotion -                        -                      -                      110,855.64          45,000.00            (65,855.64)          110,855.64          45,000.00            (65,855.64)          

05. Contract Maintenance Services -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      -                      152,094.28         341,525.00         189,430.72         14,874.75            50,000.00            35,125.25           166,969.03          391,525.00          224,555.97         

Vehicle Maintenance -                        -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        -                      
Computer Maintenance -                        -                      -                      14,874.75            50,000.00            35,125.25           14,874.75            50,000.00            35,125.25           

BRT Station Maintenance -                        -                      46,096.55           36,250.00           (9,846.55)            -                      46,096.55            36,250.00            (9,846.55)            
Building Maintenance -                        -                      105,997.73         305,275.00         199,277.27         -                      105,997.73          305,275.00          199,277.27         

09. Other Services 8,274.00              15,000.00            6,726.00              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      95,074.95            124,723.50          29,648.55           103,348.95          139,723.50          36,374.55           

Advertising -                        -                      -                      402.40                  10,768.75            10,366.35           402.40                  10,768.75            10,366.35           
Ad commission  Lottery Updates -                        -                      -                      82,352.05            65,934.25            (16,417.80)          82,352.05            65,934.25            (16,417.80)          

ADA Ride -                        -                      -                      10,506.00            16,233.00            5,727.00             10,506.00            16,233.00            5,727.00             
Drug and Alcohol Testing 2,664.00              5,000.00              2,336.00              -                      -                      -                      2,664.00              5,000.00              2,336.00             

Medical Exam Testing 5,610.00              10,000.00            4,390.00              -                      -                      -                      5,610.00              10,000.00            4,390.00             
Misc -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      -                      -                      1,814.50              31,787.50            29,973.00           1,814.50              31,787.50            29,973.00           

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED 350,731.51$        650,737.13$        300,005.62$        518,858.57$       724,098.49$       205,239.92$       37,093.08$         73,629.50$         36,536.42$         386,969.87$        243,465.50$        (143,504.37)$      1,293,653.03$     1,691,930.62$     398,277.59$       
01. Fuel and Lubricants 270,437.90          509,309.77          238,871.87          16,308.58           20,698.07           4,389.49             -                      945.22                  -                        (945.22)               287,691.70          530,007.84          242,316.14         
02. Tires and Tubes 83,048.76            141,427.36          58,378.60            -                      -                      -                      83,048.76            141,427.36          58,378.60           
09. Other Materials and Supplies (2,755.15)             -                        2,755.15              502,549.99         703,400.42         200,850.43         37,093.08           73,629.50           36,536.42           386,024.65          243,465.50          (142,559.15)        922,912.57          1,020,495.42       97,582.85           

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act) -                        502,549.99         703,400.42         200,850.43         -                      178,115.34          -                        (178,115.34)        680,665.33          703,400.42          22,735.09           
Other Equipment and Supplies (2,755.15)             -                        2,755.15              -                      37,093.08           73,629.50           36,536.42           35,337.17            100,877.50          65,540.33           69,675.10            174,507.00          104,831.90         

Office Equipment -                        -                      -                      168,869.50          137,050.50          (31,819.00)          168,869.50          137,050.50          (31,819.00)          
Admin. Supplies -                        -                      -                      3,702.64              5,537.50              1,834.86             3,702.64              5,537.50              1,834.86             

5040. UTILITIES -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    148,158.61$        206,618.75$        58,460.14$         148,158.61$        206,618.75$        58,460.14$         
Telecommunication -                        -                      -                      64,850.59            52,500.00            (12,350.59)          64,850.59            52,500.00            (12,350.59)          
Utilities -                        -                      -                      83,308.02            154,118.75          70,810.73           83,308.02            154,118.75          70,810.73           
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    628,394.52$        579,375.00$        (49,019.52)$        628,394.52$        579,375.00$        (49,019.52)$        
General Liability -                        229,674.00         405,500.00         175,826.00         -                      -                      229,674.00          405,500.00          175,826.00         
Auto Liability -                        -                      -                      1,245.00              10,800.00            9,555.00             1,245.00              10,800.00            9,555.00             
Physical Damage -                        -                      -                      155,284.02          128,750.00          (26,534.02)          155,284.02          128,750.00          (26,534.02)          
All Other -                        (229,674.00)        (405,500.00)        (175,826.00)        -                      471,865.50          439,825.00          (32,040.50)          242,191.50          34,325.00            (207,866.50)        
5060. TAXES -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 1,344,251.39$     1,600,169.25$     255,917.86$        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    1,344,251.39$     1,600,169.25$     255,917.86$       
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran 1,211,221.51       1,350,805.25       139,583.74          -                      -                      -                      1,211,221.51       1,350,805.25       139,583.74         
02. Purchased Transportation VanPool 133,029.88          249,364.00          116,334.12          -                      -                      -                      133,029.88          249,364.00          116,334.12         

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 26,127.68$          25,000.00$          (1,127.68)$           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    104,433.79$        108,958.39$        4,524.60$           130,561.47$        133,958.39$        3,396.92$           
02. Travel and Meetings -                        -                      -                      7,900.81              12,150.00            4,249.19             7,900.81              12,150.00            4,249.19             
08. Advertising/Promotion Media -                        -                      -                      779.18                  4,818.90              4,039.72             779.18                  4,818.90              4,039.72             
09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses 26,127.68            25,000.00            (1,127.68)             -                      -                      95,753.80            91,989.49            (3,764.31)            121,881.48          116,989.49          (4,891.99)            

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    
5900 ADA Expenses -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                    

Total Expenses 8,459,797.79$     9,012,836.56$     553,038.77$        1,471,578.54$    1,731,833.05$    260,254.51$       483,774.06$       772,479.05$       288,704.99$       3,220,856.93$     3,362,646.30$     141,789.36$       13,636,007.32$   14,879,794.95$   1,243,787.63$    
62.04% 60.57% 10.79% 11.64% 3.55% 5.19% 23.62% 22.60% 100.00% 100.00%

GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses

Year to Date September 30, 2021 

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Total GRTCVehicle Operations Vehicle Maintenance Facility Maintenance General Administration
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR 9,612,411.16$     10,048,209.44$   435,798.28$        
01. Operator Salaries and Wages 3,565,912.07       3,693,413.81       127,501.74           

02. Operator's Paid Absences 452,160.93           454,036.59           1,875.66               

Operator Vacation 189,799.54           179,405.52           (10,394.02)           
Operator Sick 126,870.79           107,251.27           (19,619.52)           
Holiday 135,490.60           167,379.81           31,889.21             
Operator FMLA or other leave -                         -                         

2,354,587.88       2,645,930.40       291,342.52           

Dispatch 78,436.58             84,389.80             5,953.22               
Operations Supervision 367,546.48           405,908.08           38,361.60             

Maintenance 772,481.89           864,915.89           92,434.00             
Administration 1,136,122.93       1,290,716.63       154,593.70           

71,009.87             69,230.77             (1,779.10)              

Vacation 35,211.44             -                         (35,211.44)           
Sick 18,044.99             69,230.77             51,185.78             
Holiday 17,753.44             -                         (17,753.44)           
FMLA or other leave -                         -                         -                         
05. Fringe Benefits 3,168,740.41       3,185,597.87       16,857.46             

Employment Taxes 472,733.54           505,325.69           32,592.15             
Health and Welfare Expenses 1,681,944.64       1,759,431.34       77,486.70             
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans 826,932.32           790,881.61           (36,050.71)           
Workers Compensation 177,758.50           112,500.00           (65,258.50)           
Other Fringe Beneftits 9,371.41               17,459.23             8,087.82               
5020. SERVICES 478,577.14$        619,533.50$        140,956.36$        
03. Professional and Technical Services 208,259.16           88,285.00             (119,974.16)         

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services (751.08)                 -                         751.08                  
Audit Fees 11,900.00             15,000.00             3,100.00               
Legal Fees 5,914.20               1,250.00               (4,664.20)              

Human Resources Consulting 13,050.00             12,285.00             (765.00)                 
Planning and Scheduling Consulting 67,290.40             11,750.00             (55,540.40)           

Computer Consulting -                         3,000.00               3,000.00               
Advertising and Promotion 110,855.64           45,000.00             (65,855.64)           

05. Contract Maintenance Services 166,969.03           391,525.00           224,555.97           

Vehicle Maintenance -                         -                         -                         
Computer Maintenance 14,874.75             50,000.00             35,125.25             

BRT Station Maintenance 46,096.55             36,250.00             (9,846.55)              
Building Maintenance 105,997.73           305,275.00           199,277.27           

09. Other Services 103,348.95           139,723.50           36,374.55             

Advertising 402.40                  10,768.75             10,366.35             
Ad commission  Lottery Updates 82,352.05             65,934.25             (16,417.80)           

ADA Ride 10,506.00             16,233.00             5,727.00               
Drug and Alcohol Testing 2,664.00               5,000.00               2,336.00               

Medical Exam Testing 5,610.00               10,000.00             4,390.00               
Misc 1,814.50               31,787.50             29,973.00             

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED 1,293,653.03$     1,691,930.62$     398,277.59$        
01. Fuel and Lubricants 287,691.70           530,007.84           242,316.14           

02. Tires and Tubes 83,048.76             141,427.36           58,378.60             

09. Other Materials and Supplies 922,912.57           1,020,495.42       97,582.85             

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act) 680,665.33           703,400.42           22,735.09             
Other Equipment and Supplies 69,675.10             174,507.00           104,831.90           

Office Equipment 168,869.50           137,050.50           (31,819.00)           
Admin. Supplies 3,702.64               5,537.50               1,834.86               

Total GRTC

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Total GRTC
5040. UTILITIES 148,158.61$     206,618.75$     58,460.14$    
Telecommunication 64,850.59     52,500.00     (12,350.59)   
Utilities 83,308.02  154,118.75   70,810.73  
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS 628,394.52$     579,375.00$     (49,019.52)$      
General Liability 229,674.00   405,500.00   175,826.00   
Auto Liability 1,245.00    10,800.00  9,555.00    
Physical Damage 155,284.02   128,750.00   (26,534.02)   
All Other 242,191.50   34,325.00  (207,866.50)    
5060. TAXES -$  -$ -$    
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 1,344,251.39$     1,600,169.25$     255,917.86$    
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran 1,211,221.51  1,350,805.25  139,583.74   

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool 133,029.88   249,364.00   116,334.12   

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 130,561.47$     133,958.39$     3,396.92$       
02. Travel and Meetings 7,900.81    12,150.00  4,249.19    

08. Advertising/Promotion Media 779.18    4,818.90    4,039.72    

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses 121,881.48   116,989.49   (4,891.99)   

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS -$  -$ -$    
5900 ADA Expenses -$  -$ -$    

Total Expenses 13,636,007.32$   14,879,794.95$   1,243,787.63$     
100.00% 100.00%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Beneftits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

6,731,164.29$     6,721,930.17$     (9,234.12)$     
3,565,912.07  3,693,413.81  127,501.74   

452,160.93   454,036.59   1,875.66    

189,799.54   179,405.52   (10,394.02)   
126,870.79   107,251.27   (19,619.52)   
135,490.60   167,379.81   31,889.21  

-   

447,696.82   490,297.87   42,601.05  

78,436.58  84,389.80     5,953.22    
367,546.48   405,908.08   38,361.60  

-   
1,713.76    - (1,713.76) 

-   -   -   

-   
-   
-   
-   

2,265,394.47  2,084,181.90  (181,212.57)    

320,474.21   333,494.59   13,020.38  
1,140,219.24  1,161,153.78  20,934.54  

679,361.05   507,324.43   (172,036.62)    
120,505.55   74,245.47  (46,260.08)   

4,834.42    7,963.64    3,129.22    
7,522.92$       15,000.00$    7,477.08$       

(751.08)   - 751.08 

(751.08)   - 751.08 
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

-   -   -   

-   
-   
-   
-   

8,274.00    15,000.00  6,726.00    

-   
-   
-   

2,664.00    5,000.00    2,336.00    
5,610.00    10,000.00  4,390.00    

-   -   -   
350,731.51$     650,737.13$     300,005.62$     
270,437.90   509,309.77   238,871.87   

83,048.76  141,427.36   58,378.60  

(2,755.15)   - 2,755.15 

-   
(2,755.15)   - 2,755.15 

-   
-   

Vehicle Operations
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Vehicle Operations
-$  -$ -$    

-   
-   

-$  -$ -$    
-   
-   
-   
-   

-$  -$ -$    
1,344,251.39$     1,600,169.25$     255,917.86$    
1,211,221.51  1,350,805.25  139,583.74   

133,029.88   249,364.00   116,334.12   

26,127.68$    25,000.00$    (1,127.68)$     
-   

-   

26,127.68  25,000.00  (1,127.68)   

-$     
-$     

8,459,797.79$     9,012,836.56$     553,038.77$     
62.04% 60.57%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Beneftits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

952,719.97$       1,007,734.56$    55,014.59$         
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       

574,984.45         605,043.58         30,059.13           

-                       
-                       

574,984.45         605,043.58         30,059.13           
-                       

52,008.95           69,230.77           17,221.82           

27,980.40           -                       (27,980.40)          
12,240.15           69,230.77           56,990.62           
11,788.40           -                       (11,788.40)          

-                       -                       -                       
325,726.57         333,460.21         7,733.64              

45,910.72           48,229.60           2,318.88              
163,346.34         167,924.73         4,578.38              

94,669.04           97,073.00           2,403.95              
17,263.47           10,737.29           (6,526.18)            

4,536.99              9,495.59              4,958.60              
-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

518,858.57$       724,098.49$       205,239.92$       
16,308.58           20,698.07           4,389.49              

-                       

502,549.99         703,400.42         200,850.43         

502,549.99         703,400.42         200,850.43         
-                       
-                       
-                       

Vehicle Maintenance

20



GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Vehicle Maintenance
-$                     -$                     -$                     

-                       
-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
229,674.00         405,500.00         175,826.00         

-                       
-                       

(229,674.00)        (405,500.00)        (175,826.00)        
-$                     

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       

-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       

-                       

-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-$                     -$                     -$                     

1,471,578.54$    1,731,833.05$    260,254.51$       
10.79% 11.64%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Beneftits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

294,586.70$       357,324.55$       62,737.85$         
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       

197,497.44         259,872.31         62,374.87           

-                       
-                       

197,497.44         259,872.31         62,374.87           
-                       

19,000.92           -                       (19,000.92)          

7,231.04              -                       (7,231.04)            
5,804.84              -                       (5,804.84)            
5,965.04              -                       (5,965.04)            

-                       -                       -                       
78,088.34           97,452.24           19,363.90           

15,769.56           20,715.10           4,945.54              
56,106.71           72,125.36           16,018.65           

282.37                 -                       (282.37)                
5,929.71              4,611.78              (1,317.93)            

-                       -                       -                       
152,094.28$       341,525.00$       189,430.72$       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

152,094.28         341,525.00         189,430.72         

-                       
-                       

46,096.55           36,250.00           (9,846.55)            
105,997.73         305,275.00         199,277.27         

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

-                       -                       -                       
37,093.08$         73,629.50$         36,536.42$         

-                       

-                       

37,093.08           73,629.50           36,536.42           

-                       
37,093.08           73,629.50           36,536.42           

-                       
-                       

Facility Maintenance
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Facility Maintenance
-$   -$  -$   

-   
-   

-$   -$  -$   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-$    

-$   -$  -$   
-   

-   

-$   -$  -$   
-   

-   

-   

-$   -$  -$   
-$   -$  -$   

483,774.06$       772,479.05$    288,704.99$       
3.55% 5.19%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Beneftits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

1,633,940.20$     1,961,220.16$     327,279.96$       
-   

-   -   -   

-   
-   
-   

1,134,409.17  1,290,716.63  156,307.46    

-   
-   
-   

1,134,409.17  1,290,716.63  156,307.46    

-   -   -   

-   
-   
-   
-   

499,531.03   670,503.52   170,972.49    

90,579.05  102,886.40   12,307.34   
322,272.35   358,227.48   35,955.13   

52,619.86  186,484.18   133,864.32    
34,059.77  22,905.46     (11,154.31)  

-   -   -   
318,959.94$     263,008.50$     (55,951.44)$     
209,010.24   88,285.00  (120,725.24)   

-   -   -   
11,900.00  15,000.00     3,100.00   

5,914.20    1,250.00    (4,664.20)    
13,050.00  12,285.00     (765.00)     
67,290.40  11,750.00     (55,540.40)  

- 3,000.00 3,000.00   
110,855.64   45,000.00  (65,855.64)  

14,874.75  50,000.00 35,125.25   

-   
14,874.75  50,000.00     35,125.25   

-   
-   

95,074.95  124,723.50   29,648.55   

402.40    10,768.75     10,366.35   
82,352.05  65,934.25     (16,417.80)  
10,506.00  16,233.00     5,727.00   

-   
-   

1,814.50    31,787.50  29,973.00   
386,969.87$     243,465.50$     (143,504.37)$      

945.22    - (945.22)  

-   

386,024.65   243,465.50   (142,559.15)   

178,115.34   - (178,115.34) 
35,337.17  100,877.50   65,540.33

168,869.50   137,050.50   (31,819.00) 
3,702.64    5,537.50    1,834.86   

General Administration
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

General Administration
148,158.61$        206,618.75$        58,460.14$         

64,850.59             52,500.00             (12,350.59)          
83,308.02             154,118.75           70,810.73           

628,394.52$        579,375.00$        (49,019.52)$        
-                       

1,245.00               10,800.00             9,555.00              
155,284.02           128,750.00           (26,534.02)          
471,865.50           439,825.00           (32,040.50)          

-$                      -$                      -$                     
-$                      -$                      -$                     

-                       

-                       

104,433.79$        108,958.39$        4,524.60$           
7,900.81               12,150.00             4,249.19              

779.18                  4,818.90               4,039.72              

95,753.80             91,989.49             (3,764.31)            

-$                      -$                      -$                     
-$                      -$                      -$                     

3,220,856.93$     3,362,646.30$     141,789.36$       
23.62% 22.60%
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GRTC Transit System 
Year to Date September 30, 2021 

 

  

   

 

Operating Expenses

Budget Actual (Over) Under % of Budget

Vehicle Operations 9,012,836.56$    8,459,797.79$    553,038.77$      93.86%

Vehicle Maintenance 1,731,833.05      1,471,578.54      260,254.51        84.97%

Facility Maintenance 772,479.05          483,774.06          288,704.99        62.63%

General Administration 3,362,646.30      3,220,856.93      141,789.36        95.78%

Total GRTC 14,879,794.95$  13,636,007.32$  1,243,787.63$  91.64%

Budget Actual (Over) Under % of Budget

5010. Labor 10,048,209.44$  9,612,411.16$    435,798.28$      95.66%

5020. Services 619,533.50          478,577.14          140,956.36        77.25%

5030. Materials and Supplies Consumed 1,691,930.62      1,293,653.03      398,277.59        76.46%

5040. Utilities 206,618.75          148,158.61          58,460.14          71.71%

5050. Casualties and Liability Costs 579,375.00          628,394.52          (49,019.52)         108.46%

5060. Taxes -                         -                         -                       0.00%

5100. Purchased Transportation Service 1,600,169.25      1,344,251.39      255,917.86        84.01%

5090. Misc Expenses 133,958.39          130,561.47          3,396.92             97.46%

Total GRTC 14,879,794.95$  13,636,007.32$  1,243,787.63$  91.64%

Total Revenue Miles 1,438,392.40      1,304,979.87      

Operating Expense per Mile 10.34$                  10.45$                  

Total Revenue Hours 128,633.45          123,868.79          

Operating Expense per Hour 115.68$                110.08$                
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Operating Expenses are favorable versus budget by $1.243M or 8.36% as a result of: 

• Favorable labor expenses of $435.8K as a result of favorable headcount versus budget in

transportation and equipment and facility maintenance groups and higher than budgeted

vacancy factor in the general and administrative groups offset by the operator and maintenance

pension expense associated with the COVID Bonus payments

• Favorable purchased services of $141.0k as a result of timing of building maintenance versus

budget calendarization

• Favorable materials and supplies of $398.3k as a result of timing of purchases versus budget

calendarization.

• Unfavorable casualties and liability expense is due to recording annual provision for uninsured

losses.

• Favorable purchased transportation services of $255.9k due actual demand differing from

budgetary assumptions

Operating Expense per Mile Budget Actual

Vehicle Operations 6.27$     6.48$     

Vehicle Maintenance 1.20 1.13 

Facility Maintenance 0.54 0.37 

General Administration 2.34 2.47 

Total GRTC 10.34$    10.45$    

Operating Expense per Mile Budget Actual

5010. Labor 6.99$     7.37$     

5020. Services 0.43 0.37 

5030. Materials and Supplies Consumed 1.18 0.99 

5040. Utilities 0.14 0.11 

5050. Casualties and Liability Costs 0.40 0.48 

5060. Taxes - - 

5100. Purchased Transportation Service 1.11 1.03 

5090. Misc Expenses 0.09 0.10 

10.34$    10.45$    
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Operating Expense per Hour Budget Actual

Vehicle Operations 70.07$    68.30$    

Vehicle Maintenance 13.46 11.88 

Facility Maintenance 6.01 3.91 

General Administration 26.14 26.00 

Total GRTC 115.68$    110.08$    

Operating Expense per Hour Budget Actual

5010. Labor 78.12$    77.60$    

5020. Services 4.82 3.86 

5030. Materials and Supplies Consumed 13.15 10.44 

5040. Utilities 1.61 1.20 

5050. Casualties and Liability Costs 4.50 5.07 

5060. Taxes - - 

5100. Purchased Transportation Service 12.44 10.85 

5090. Misc Expenses 1.04 1.05 

115.68$    110.08$    

GRTC Headcount @ September 30, 2021  Budget Actual (Over) Under % of Budget

Equipment & Facility Maintenance 77 63 14 84.42%

Transportation 331 298 33 94.56%

Planning, Scheduling & Marketing       17 16 1 94.12%

Insurance & Safety       11 8 3 72.73%

General & Administrative       55 51 4 96.36%

491 436 55 92.67%
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Fav/ 
(Unfav)

Fav/ 
(Unfav)

FY 2022 
Annual 
Budget

Budget Actual Difference Budget Actual Difference
Operating Revenue:
Customer Revenue - Fixed Route -$              -$              -$              F -$              -$              -$              F -$                
Pass Program Revenue 138,076         138,076         -                 F 414,228         341,903         (72,325)         U 1,656,912       
Charter Revenue -                 -                 -                 F -                 -                 -                 F -                  
Advertising Revenue 50,417           261,454         211,038         F 151,250         308,119         156,869         F 605,000          
Other Operating Revenue 1,563             -                 (1,563)           U 4,688             -                 (4,688)           U 18,750            

    Total Operating Revenue 190,055$      399,530$      209,475$      F 570,166$      650,022$      79,856$         F 2,280,662$     

Other Income:
Ridefinders 41,623           38,037           (3,586)           U 124,869         113,549         (11,320)         U 499,475          
Interest Income 14,583           1,480             (13,104)         U 43,750           4,620             (39,130)         U 175,000          
Non-Transportation Income 1,667             496                (1,170)           U 5,000             1,781             (3,219)           U 20,000            

    Total Other Income 57,873$         40,013$         (17,860)$       U 173,619$      119,950$      (53,669)$       U 694,475$        

Operating Contributions:
CARES Act VA2020-023 694,753         -                 (694,753)       U 2,084,258     1,429,411     (654,847)       U 8,337,032       
FFCRA Credit -                 -                 -                 F -                 69,687           69,687           F -                  
Oper contrib - Federal 609,654         8,000             (601,654)       U 1,828,963     142,759         (1,686,204)    U 7,315,853       
Oper contrib - State 1,025,400     1,006,162     (19,238)         U 3,076,201     3,017,659     (58,542)         U 12,304,806     
Oper contrib - CVTA 1,580,247     1,580,247     (0)                   U 4,740,742     4,740,742     (0)                   U 18,962,968     
Oper contrib - Richmond 645,804         645,804         (0)                   U 1,937,413     1,937,413     0                    F 7,749,653       
Oper contrib - Henrico 346,488         346,488         0                    F 1,039,465     1,039,465     -                 F 4,157,860       
Oper contrib - Petersburg 16,667           16,667           0                    F 50,000           50,000           0                    F 200,000          
Oper contrib - Chesterfield 101,038         101,038         0                    F 303,114         303,114         0                    F 1,212,455       

      Total Operating Contributions: 5,020,052$   3,704,407$   (1,315,646)$  U 15,060,157$ 12,730,250$ (2,329,907)$  U 60,240,628$   

       Net Operating Revenue 5,267,980$   4,143,950$   (1,124,030)$  U 15,803,941$ 13,500,222$ (2,303,720)$  U 63,215,766$   

Operating Expenses:
Equipment & Facility Maintenance 1,034,255     726,895         (307,360)       F 3,124,024     2,337,498     (786,526)       F 12,858,053     
Transportation 1,721,789     1,595,654     (126,135)       F 5,165,367     5,130,848     (34,519)         F 22,379,175     
Planning, Scheduling & Marketing 141,730         265,554         123,824         U 417,489         529,807         112,319         U 2,233,597       
Insurance and Safety 287,951         160,009         (127,942)       F 863,852         939,434         75,582           U 3,512,367       
General and Administrative 1,067,273     933,140         (134,133)       F 3,201,818     2,881,266     (320,552)       F 13,638,633     
Purchase of Service - Spectran & Van Pool 533,390         445,194         (88,195)         F 1,600,169     1,344,251     (255,918)       F 6,400,677       
Operating Taxes and Licenses 169,025         153,290         (15,735)         F 507,076         472,903         (34,173)         F 2,193,260       

    Total Operating Expenses 4,955,412$   4,279,736$   (675,676)$     F 14,879,795$ 13,636,007$ (1,243,788)$  F 63,215,764$   

      Change in Net Postion 312,568$      (135,786)$     (448,354)$     U 924,146$      (135,786)$     (1,059,932)$  U 2$                   

Operating Ratio 14.37% 21.12% 6.75% 14.36% 15.86% 1.50%

Farebox Recovery Ratio 3.12% 3.60% 0.48% 3.12% 2.78% -0.34%

Current Month Year To Date

GRTC Transit System
STATEMENT OF INCOME

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL
For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2021
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Current Month Prior Month Prior Year End
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $5,028,773 $6,098,093 $2,358,428
Working Funds 118,266  118,266  118,266  
Capital Funds 6,064,699  6,063,242  6,060,140  
Accounts Receivable, net 4,921,534  6,205,680  8,373,592  
Motor Bus Parts Inventory 888,167  878,865  854,431  
Gasoline Inventory 4,997    8,581    2,260    
Diesel Fuels Inventory 20,847  25,993  23,977  
Lubricants Inventory 39,978  44,193  18,128  
Prepayments 379,234  383,198  595,914  
Total Current Assets $17,466,495 $19,826,111 $18,405,136

Tangible Property:
Property and Equipment 157,964,138  157,057,022  155,706,569  
Accumulated Depreciation (83,898,570)  (83,498,570)  (82,698,570)  

Net Property $74,065,568 $73,558,452 $73,007,999

Other Assets:
Restricted Funds (LGIP) 8,492,752 8,492,752 8,492,752
Restricted Funds (CVTA Special Fund) 17,739,143 13,804,791 16,325,886
Intangible Asset - Software, net of amortiza 1,007,574 1,007,574 1,007,574
Deferred Outflows GASB 68 26,724,818 26,724,818 26,724,818
Deferred Outflows GASB 75 -   -   -   
Total Other Assets 53,964,287 50,029,935 52,551,030

TOTAL ASSETS $145,496,350 $143,414,498 $143,964,165

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 4,082,508  3,850,001  4,539,970  
Wages Payable 1,488,039  1,345,731  2,567,644  
Taxes Accrued 100,449  90,337  186,856  
Deferred Revenues CVTA 17,923,401   15,569,296   16,325,886   
Other Current Liabilities 1,709,066  2,740,075  1,066,260  
Total Current Liabilities $25,303,463 $23,595,440 $24,686,616

Non-current Liabilities:
N/P City, OPEB and GASB 68 87,383,777$     87,383,777$     87,383,777$     

Reserves:
Injuries, Loss, and Damage 172,475  172,475  172,475  
Total Reserves $172,475 $172,475 $172,475

TOTAL LIABILITIES 112,859,715 111,151,692 112,242,868

Capital:
Common Stock 50,005  50,005  50,005  
Paid-In Capital 100,637,815  99,730,699   98,389,190   
Fund Balance - Accumulated Depreciation (83,004,669)  (82,604,669)  (81,804,669)  
Fund Balance - GASB 68 (36,089,951)  (36,089,951)  (36,089,951)  
Fund Balance 51,043,435   51,176,722   51,176,722   

Total Capital 32,636,635$     32,262,806$     31,721,297$     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 145,496,350$   143,414,498$   143,964,165$   

GRTC Transit System

As of September 30, 2021 
Balance Sheet
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Greater Richmond Transit Company
Cash Flow Projection

October 26, 2021

Actual Preliminary Expected Projected Projected
August September October November December

Beginning Balance 1,778,723$    3,584,823$     1,875,386$    7,109,527$    5,512,628$   

Payroll 2,342,461$    2,460,147$     2,654,784$    2,221,800$    2,221,800$   
Insurance 386,383$        112,282$         228,903$        -$                341,185$      
Medical 1,555,116$    707,714$         1,271,534$    1,081,700$    1,081,700$   
Parts/Supplies/Fuel 442,266$        503,693$         346,280$        346,280$       346,280$      
First Transit/Care-On-Demand 469,648$        91,877$           915,841$        479,598$       479,598$      
Marketing/Utilities 129,398$        230,309$         134,270$        134,270$       134,270$      
Other 1,608,821$    974,601$         28,793$          28,692$          28,692$         
Operating Transfer into Capital -$                -$                 -$                -$                -$               
Actual/Expected Expenses 6,934,093$    5,080,624$     5,580,404$    4,292,339$    4,633,524$   

Conservative Gross Excess/(Deficiency) (5,155,370)$   (1,495,800)$    (3,705,018)$   2,817,188$    879,104$      

Federal 4,245,030$    -$                 1,317,743$    1,317,743$    1,317,743$   
State 2,057,902$    997,849$         1,012,065$    1,012,065$    1,012,065$   
CVTA -$                -$                 4,740,742$    -$                -$               
Richmond 1,937,413$    -$                 1,937,413$    -$                -$               
Henrico 374,717$        1,039,465$     1,039,465$    -$                -$               
Chesterfield 17,321$          180,526$         303,114$        101,038$       101,038$      
Petersburg -$                16,667$           33,334$          16,667$          16,667$         
VCU -$                1,040,956$     -$                -$                -$               
Other 107,810$        95,724$           430,669$        247,928$       247,928$      
Reserve Transfer into Revenue -$                -$                 -$                -$                -$               
Actual/ Expected Revenues 8,740,193$    3,371,187$     10,814,545$  2,695,441$    2,695,441$   

Conservative Excess/(Deficiency) 3,584,823$    1,875,386$     7,109,527$    5,512,628$    3,574,545$   
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Beginning Balance @ June 30,2021 16,325,911.27$     

Receipts:
July 28, 2021 GRTC 15% Funds Distribution - Month of June 2021 2,396,530.80$     

September 20, 2021 GRTC 15% Funds Distribution - Month of July 2021 1,638,111.37$     
September 30, 2021 GRTC 15% Funds Distribution - Month of August 2021 2,344,669.04$     

July 30, 2021 Interest Income LGIP EM- July 2021 1,981.73$             
July 30, 2021 July 2021 LGIP EM Share unrealized gain 12,987.68$           

August 31, 2021 Interest Income LGIP EM- August 2021 1,934.53$             
August 31, 2021 August 2021 LGIP EM Share unrealized gain -$                       

September 30, 2021 Interest Income LGIP EM- September 2021 1,875.71$             
September 30, 2021 September 2021 LGIP EM Share unrealized gain (13,610.67)$         

Subtotal Receipts 6,384,480.19$       

Uses:
Costs incurred in preparing GRTC Regional Public Transportation Plan (46,248.69)$           

GRTC Operating and Capital Expense
GRTC Operating Expense Qtr 1 FY2022 Draw (4,740,742.00)$    
GRTC Capital Expense Qtr 1 FY2022 Local Share Draw (184,258.00)$       

Subtotal GRTC Operating and Capital Expense (4,925,000.00)$      

Ending Balance @ September 30, 2021 17,739,142.77$     

GRTC Transit System
CVTA Special Fund Quarterly Report

For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2021
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Recent and Upcoming Procurements 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board Chair is authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the full GRTC Board for 
contracts valued over $50,000 and under $100,000.  The Board chair is authorized to also 
sign emergency related contracts under the COVID pandemic under $250,000.  Any contract 
signed by the Board Chair shall be reported at the next full Board Meeting. 

The Procurement Department maintains a rolling list of upcoming procurement items 
anticipated for the coming year.  At least three months prior to initiation of the procurement 
process, staff will update the Board prior to releasing requests for proposals, quotes, 
invitations for bids, or other methods of procurement.  

The Recent and Upcoming Procurement report ensures full transparency in contracting. 

Tonya Thompson, Director of Procurement, will review and answer questions on the list of 
upcoming procurements as follows: 

CURRENT STATUS: 

Upcoming Procurements 

TITLE DEPT BUDGET 
ANTICIPATED 
AWARD DATE 

INCLUDED IN 
BUDGET 
(YES/NO) 

GRANT STATUS 
(EXISTING/ 
PENDING/ 
PLANNED) 

Roof Repairs Facilities $125,000 TBD Y – FY22 Pending 

Interior Painting Facilities $250,000 Fall 2021 Y – FY21 Pending 

Transit Stop Snow 
Removal Facilities $195,000 Fall 2021 

Y – FY22 
Operating 

Budget 

Video Production 
Services – Now Hiring 
Series Marketing $18,500 Fall/Winter 2021 

Y – FY22 
Operating 

Budget 

Enterprise Resource 
Planning System 

Information 
Systems 

Estimate Low 
$1,068,322 – 

High 
$4,510,322 Fall 2021 

Presented in 
FY21 for FY23 

Planned 
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Fuel Delivery Services Maintenance TBD Fall/Winter 

Y – FY22 
Operating 

Budget 

Specialized 
Transportation 
Services Transportation TBD Fall 2021 

Y – FY22 
Operating 

Budget 

Actuarial Services Finance TBD Fall 2021 

N – FY22 
Pension Plan 

Reimbursement 

BRT Expansion Study Planning $200,000 Spring 2022 Y – FY21 Pending 

Dedicated Lane Study Planning TBD Winter 2022 Y – FY21 Planned 

Transit Asset 
Management Plan Planning $110,000 Fall 2021 Y – FY21 Pending 

Facilities Master Plan Planning $300,000 Spring 2022 Y – FY22 Planned 

Neighborhood 
Transfer Center Study Planning $200,000 Winter 2022 Y – FY22 Planned 

Data Network & 
Server Expansion 

Information 
Systems $115,000 Fall 2021 Y- FY21 Pending 

Shop Floor Repairs Facilities $100,000 Winter 2021 Y – FY22 Pending 

Shelter Repairs Facilities $100,000 Winter 2022 Y – FY21 Existing 

CARE-ON-DEMAND 
and Overflow Service 
Providers Transportation TBD Winter 2022 Planned 

Portable Toilets Transportation TBD Winter 2021 Planned 

On-Call Marketing 
Services – 
Photography, 
Graphics, 
Videography, 
consulting, web 
design, etc.  Marketing TBD Winter 2022 TBD Planned 

Temporary Transfer 
Center Development Planning $ 2,743,940 Winter 2022 Y- FY22 Existing 

KEY 

Ready Project approved and funds are available. 

Existing Project approved and funds to be applied to federal grant. 

Pending Awaiting approval of funds. 

Planned Project is in planning phase and funding to be applied for in future. 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: RideFinders FY2021 Annual Financial Audit 

BACKGROUND: 

According to RideFinders Amended and Restated Bylaws, the “Corporation’s books 
and financial records should be audited after each fiscal year. The auditors shall 
present the results of the audit to the Board of Directors.” 

CURRENT STATUS: 

Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P conducted RideFinders’ audit of financial 
statements which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, 
and 2020 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the financial 
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Leslie Roberts, CPA, Partner, Brown Edwards & Company, will present the Financial 
Audit report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Directors accepts RideFinders FY21 Annual Report as presented. 

Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 

35



Report to the 
Board of Directors 

RIDEFINDERS 

June 30, 2021 
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CONTACTS 

Leslie F. Roberts, CPA  
Partner 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P. 
701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 
Newport News, Virginia  23606 
757-316-3220 
lroberts@BEcpas.com 

Danielle A. Nikolaisen, CPA  
Director 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P. 
701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 
Newport News, Virginia  23606 
757-316-3204 
dnikolaisen@BEcpas.com 

Josh Brinkman, CPA 
Senior Manager 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P. 
701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 
Newport News, Virginia  23606 
757-316-3252 
jbrinkman@BEcpas.com 
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Your Success is Our Focus 
 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 • Newport News VA 23606 • 757-873-1033 • Fax 757-873-1106 • www.BEcpas.com 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited the financial statements of RideFinders (the “Organization”) for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated September 21, 2021. Professional standards 
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated 
July 1, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 
related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2021. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management, and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events, and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  We noted no estimates significant to Ridefinders financial statements. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, clear, and consistent. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 
corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit 
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as whole. 
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter included in Appendix A. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of RideFinders, 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Sincerely, 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
September 21, 2021 
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Your Success is Our Focus 
 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 • Newport News VA 23606 • 757-873-1033 • Fax 757-873-1106 • www.BEcpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RideFinders (a nonprofit organization), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted  in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of RideFinders as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  
The grant activity on page 12 is presented for purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, such information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 21, 2021, on our consideration of RideFinders’ internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering RideFinders' 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
September 21, 2021 
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The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

ASSETS
Cash 207,407$ 200,335$                
Accounts receivable 1,745 8,175 
Grants receivable (Note 5) 96,438 118,258 
Due from GRTC (related party) (Note 6) 120,602 145,837 
Prepaid expenses 8,141 13,562 
Property and equipment, net 1,488 2,029 

Total assets 435,821$ 488,196$                

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable 40,646$ 36,981$  
Accrued expenses 43,821 41,330 
Amount held for pass-through grant (Note 8) - 66,000 
Deferred rent liability (Note 7) 31,165 33,460 

Total liabilities 115,632 177,771 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 320,189 310,425 

Total liabilities and net assets 435,821$ 488,196$                
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The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT 
  DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Grants: (Note 5)
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation:

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 559,228$ 619,353$                
Commonwealth of Virginia 5,564 14,435 
Mobility Program 37,882 33,718 

City of Richmond 7,500 8,390 
Chesterfield County 7,500 7,500 
Henrico County 7,500 7,500 

Total grants 625,174 690,896 

Transit tickets and other revenue 12,525 389,044 

Total public support and revenue without 
donor restrictions 637,699 1,079,940 

EXPENSES (Notes 9 and 10)
Program expenses 492,255 910,785 
Supporting expenses 135,680 137,976 

Total expenses 627,935 1,048,761 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 9,764 31,179 

Net assets, beginning of year 310,425 279,246 

Net net assets, end of year 320,189$                310,425$                
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The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 9,764$ 31,179$  
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
 provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 541 3,267            
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 6,430            23,727          
Grants receivable 21,820          (16,457)         
Due from GRTC (related party) 25,235          (25,235)         
Prepaid expenses 5,421            (3,865)           
Accounts payable 3,665            (36,365)         
Accrued expenses 2,491            7,186            
Amount held for pass-through grant (66,000)         (8,990)           
Deferred rent liability (2,295)           4,989            

Net increase (decrease) in cash 7,072 (20,564) 

CASH
Beginning of year 200,335 220,899 

End of year 207,407$ 200,335$                
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RIDEFINDERS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Continued) 
6 

1. Organization

RideFinders is non-stock, non-profit corporation established to foster community participation in the Greater
Richmond, Virginia area in ridesharing activities, including carpools, vanpools, and traditional transit.
RideFinders is the regional non-profit ridesharing and transportation demand management agency that works
to move more commuters in fewer vehicles throughout the Central Virginia region to protect air quality and
increase the efficiency of the region’s transportation network.  RideFinders is a blended component unit of
Greater Richmond Transit Co. (GRTC) and is reported as such in GRTC’s financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for nonprofit
organizations, RideFinders is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor
restrictions. The financial statements report amounts separately by class of net assets as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions 
Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use in general operations and not subject to 
donor restrictions. These amounts are currently available at the discretion of RideFinders’ Board of 
Directors for use in operations and those resources invested in property or equipment. 

Net assets with donor restrictions 
Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed 
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other 
events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the 
donor stipulates that resources must be maintained in perpetuity. RideFinders had no net assets with 
donor restrictions at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Revenue recognition 

RideFinders derives most of its revenues from contributions and transit ticket sales. Contributions are 
comprised primarily of grants from federal governmental agencies and other agencies which are included 
within operating revenues on the statements of activities.  Grant funding is recognized as revenue at the time 
when reimbursable expenses are incurred.  Transit ticket sales and other revenues include primarily the sale 
of GRTC transit tickets, but also include other vanpooling and commercial transit vouchers as well as some 
retail sales. Transit ticket sales, vouchers and retail sales are recognized as revenue at the time they are sold. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates and assumptions. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Continued) 
7 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash

RideFinders cash consists of demand deposit accounts with banking institutions.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable in the amount of $1,745 and $8,175 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, represent
amounts due from the sale of transit tickets and related products. RideFinders grants credit to customers,
substantially all of whom are retail businesses and local government agencies, located in the vicinity of the
operating locations.  RideFinders provides an allowance for doubtful collections that is based upon a review
of outstanding receivables, historical collection information, and existing economic conditions.  Delinquent
receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer.
No allowance for doubtful collections has been recorded at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Donated services

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services since the criteria for
recognition has not been met under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost.  Major additions and betterments are capitalized.  The cost of
maintenance and repairs is expensed in the period incurred.  Depreciation is determined on the straight-line
method.  Estimated useful lives for purposes of depreciation are three to ten years.

Functional expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in the statements of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program and supporting
services.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and were $540 and $46,874 for 2021 and 2020, respectively,
and are included in program expenses on the statements of activities.

Income taxes

RideFinders is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and the tax statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia; accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements do not reflect a provision or liability for federal and state income taxes.

Subsequent events

In preparing these financial statements, RideFinders has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through September 21, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Continued) 
8 

3. Liquidity and Availability

As part of its liquidity management, RideFinders has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available
as its general expenses, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

Financial assets available for general expenditure without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2021 2020 

Cash, less amounts held for pass-through grant $ 207,407 $ 134,335 
Accounts receivable 1,745 8,175 
Grants receivable 96,438 118,258 
Prepaid expenses 8,141 13,562 

$ 313,731 $ 274,330 

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2021 2020 

Furniture and fixtures $ 83,301 $ 83,301 
Leasehold improvements 31,981 31,981 
Computer equipment 38,355 38,355 

153,637 153,637 
Accumulated depreciation (152,149) (151,608) 

$ 1,488 $ 2,029 

Total depreciation expense allocated among program and supporting services was $541 and $3,267 for 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 

5. Grants

Grants by the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT) provide for reimbursement
of certain qualified expenditures incurred during the fiscal year.  The grants are renewable on an annual basis.
Grant revenues are recognized in the period in which the related expenditures are incurred.  The VDRPT
grants represent the pass-through of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grants from the
Department of Transportation - Federal Highway Administration.  Future CMAQ funding may be reduced
due to changes in the funding allocation process.  However, RideFinders is working with other local
transportation organizations to help ensure funding is maintained at an adequate level. Total grant revenues
were 98% and 64% of total revenues for 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Grants receivable in the amount of $96,438 and $118,258 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are due to
be collected within one year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Continued) 
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6. Related Party Transactions

RideFinders has various transactions with GRTC.  The amounts in the accompanying financial statements
related to GRTC are presented below:

2021 2020 

Accounts payable $ 37,762 $ 36,540 

Payroll and related expenses $ 483,425 $ 477,989 

Other expenses (advertising, transit tickets) $ - $ 208,383 

Due from GRTC $ 120,602 $ 145,837 

Effective January 1, 1998, all RideFinders’ employees became GRTC employees.  RideFinders and GRTC 
entered into an employee lease agreement whereby RideFinders leases its employees from GRTC. 

7. Leases

On August 8, 2011, GRTC entered into a lease agreement on behalf of RideFinders for office facilities in The
Ironfronts Building.  The lease was renewed on February 19, 2019, and extends through June 30, 2029. Total
rent to be paid during the initial one hundred twenty five month lease period is $711,780, or $5,694 per month
on a straight-line basis.  Leasehold improvements necessary to occupy the leased premises are to be paid by
the lessor.

Lease expense associated with this lease was $68,331 for June 30, 2021 and 2020, and is included in both
program and supporting expenses on the statements of activities.

RideFinders has recorded a deferred rent liability on the statements of net position of $31,165 and $33,460 at
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which represents the difference between the rent expense recorded on
a straight-line basis and actual cash payments made to the lessor.

Future minimum rent payments under this lease are as follows:

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2022 $ 61,274 
2023 68,670 
2024 70,533 
2025 72,471 
2026 74,445 
Thereafter 230,418 

$ 577,811 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 
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10 

8. Amount Held for Pass-Through Grant

During 2019, RideFinders entered into a grant agreement with the Bon Secours - Richmond Health System
(BSRHS) and GRTC whereby BSRHS provided a grant amount of $100,000 to Ridefinders to fund a bus stop
improvement project being administered by GRTC.  RideFinders sole obligations under this grant are to: (i)
receive and hold the funds; (ii) prepare the required financial reporting; and (iii) reimburse GRTC for actual
expenditures made by GRTC for the project.  RideFinders had received the full $100,000 from BSRHS and
had a balance of $-0- and $66,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, remaining to be disbursed to
GRTC.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, RideFinders entered into a similar agreement, again with BSRHS and
GRTC.  The entire amount of the $100,000 grant was received from BSRHS and distributed to GRTC during
the year.

9. Functional Expenses and Allocations

RideFinders had administrative and general expenses of $135,680 and $137,976 during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which consists of a 22% allocation of all non-direct program expenses
based on the amount of time personnel and thus their related equipment and other overhead costs devote to
general administrative tasks versus the provision of services in accordance with RideFinders’ mission.
RideFinders had no fundraising expenses during 2021 or 2020.

10. Natural Expense Classification

The natural classification of total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021, is as follows:

Program  Supporting Total 

Salaries and benefits $ 377,072 $ 106,353 $ 483,425 
Rent 53,298 15,033 68,331 
Professional services 17,476 4,929 22,405 
Insurance 10,087 2,845 12,932 
Other 9,739 2,747 12,486 
Transit tickets and other retail 9,975 - 9,975
Office supplies and expense 7,119 2,008 9,127
Telephone 4,701 1,327 6,028
Professional development 1,131 319 1,450
Employer based services 695 - 695
Depreciation 422 119 541
Advertising and promotion 540 - 540

$ 492,255 $ 135,680 $ 627,935 

58



RIDEFINDERS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

11 

10. Natural Expense Classification (Continued)

The natural classification of total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:

Program  Supporting Total 

Salaries and benefits $ 372,830 $ 105,159 $ 477,989 
Transit tickets and other retail 351,166 242 351,408 
Rent 56,554 15,952 72,506 
Advertising and promotion 46,874 - 46,874
Other 17,374 4,196 21,570
Vanpool assistance 21,482 - 21,482
Professional services 16,554 4,669 21,223
Insurance 10,248 2,891 13,139
Office supplies and expense 7,234 2,041 9,275 
Telephone 4,870 1,374 6,244 
Depreciation 2,548 719 3,267 
Professional development 2,402 677 3,079 
Employer based services 450 - 450

$ 910,785 $ 137,976 $ 1,048,761 

11. Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

The FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), in February 2016. This ASU requires the recognition
of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under previous
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which have terms greater than 12 months. This ASU
defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property,
plant, or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This ASU retains a
distinction between finance leases and operating leases. The result of retaining a distinction between finance
leases and operating leases in the statements of activities and cash flows is largely unchanged from previous
GAAP. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for fiscal year 2022.

12. Economic Uncertainty

The COVID-19 coronavirus outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a
range of industries.  The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on Ridefinders’ operational and financial
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact
on customers, employees and vendors all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.  At this point, the
extent to which COVID-19 may impact Ridefinders’ financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.
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RIDEFINDERS

SCHEDULES OF GRANT ACTIVITY
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 Revenue
Federal State Total

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Grants 447,382$          111,846$          559,228$          
Commonwealth of Virginia Grants - 5,564 5,564                
Mobility Program - 37,882 37,882              

447,382$          155,292$          602,674$          

2020 Revenue
Federal State Total

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Grants 495,487$          123,866$          619,353$          
Commonwealth of Virginia Grants - 14,435 14,435              
Mobility Program - 33,718 33,718              

495,487$          172,019$          667,506$          
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER  

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of 
RideFinders, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated September 21, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered RideFinders' internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders' internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders' internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

62



14 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether RideFinders' financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
September 21, 2021 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: GRTC FY2021 Annual Financial Audit 

BACKGROUND: 

According to the Articles of Incorporation, Greater Richmond Transit Company’s books 
and financial records shall be audited after each fiscal year.  The Auditors shall present 
the results of the audit to the Board of Directors. 

CURRENT STATUS: 

Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P. conducted Greater Richmond Transit Company’s 
audit of financial statements which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2021, for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the financial 
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Leslie Roberts, CPA, Partner, Brown Edwards & Company, will present the Financial 
Audit report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Directors accepts Greater Richmond Transit Company’s FY2021 
Audit report as presented. 

Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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CONTACTS 

Leslie F. Roberts, CPA 
Partner 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P. 
Fountain Plaza One 
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Fountain Plaza One 
701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 
Newport News, VA 23606 
757-316-3208 
cturner@BEcpas.com 
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited the financial statements of Greater Richmond Transit Company (the “Company”) and 
its blended component unit for the year ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we 
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, 
if applicable, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated April 21, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Company are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2021. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the Company during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management, and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events, and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Company’s financial 
statements were: 

• The pension liability and related deferred amount are based on the type of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and expected value and projected performance of the related plan
assets.

• The useful lives of capital assets is based on historical experience with similar assets and industry
standards.

• The accrued uninsured accident claim is based on management’s estimate of total liability for
each claim, historical experience and trend information.
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We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining 
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 

• Retirement plans (Note 6), accrued uninsured accident claims (Note 7), union contract (Note 11),  
and commitments and contingencies (Note 14) 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. There were no uncorrected misstatements and management has corrected certain other 
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures as summarized in the attached journal entries 
(Appendix B). 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter included in Appendix A. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to Greater Richmond Transit Company’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional 
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the 
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Greater Richmond Transit Company’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
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Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the exhibits and the 
Required Supplementary Information as listed in the Table of Contents, which are required supplementary 
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries 
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, which accompany the 
financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  

Restriction of Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Greater 
Richmond Transit Company, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Sincerely, 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
ENTER DATE 
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The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017.  The objective of this Statement is to better 
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting 
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements 
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee 
is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required 
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  

Definition of a Lease 

A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset 
(the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any 
contract that meets this definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically 
excluded in this Statement. 

Lease Term 

The lease term is defined as the period during which a lessee has a noncancelable right to use an underlying 
asset, plus the following periods, if applicable:  

a. Periods covered by a lessee’s option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all 
relevant factors, that the lessee will exercise that option. 

b. Periods covered by a lessee’s option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all 
relevant factors, that the lessee will not exercise that option. 

c. Periods covered by a lessor’s option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all 
relevant factors, that the lessor will exercise that option. 

d. Periods covered by a lessor’s option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all 
relevant factors, that the lessor will not exercise that option. 

A fiscal funding or cancellation clause should affect the lease term only when it is reasonably certain that 
the clause will be exercised. 

Lessees and lessors should reassess the lease term only if one or more of the following occur:  

a. The lessee or lessor elects to exercise an option even though it was previously determined that it 
was reasonably certain that the lessee or lessor would not exercise that option. 

b. The lessee or lessor elects not to exercise an option even though it was previously determined that 
it was reasonably certain that the lessee or lessor would exercise that option. 

c. An event specified in the lease contract that requires an extension or termination of the lease takes 
place. 

 

71



ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS 

June 30, 2021 

NEW GASB PRONOUCEMENTS 

Report to the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 6 

Short-Term Leases 

A short-term lease is defined as a lease that, at the commencement of the lease term, has a maximum 
possible term under the lease contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless 
of their probability of being exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short-term lease payments 
as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the 
lease contract.  

Lessee Accounting 

A lessee should recognize a lease liability and a lease asset at the commencement of the lease term, unless 
the lease is a short-term lease or it transfers ownership of the underlying asset. The lease liability should 
be measured at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term (less any lease 
incentives). The lease asset should be measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease 
liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term and 
certain direct costs. 

A lessee should reduce the lease liability as payments are made and recognize an outflow of resources 
(for example, expense) for interest on the liability. The lessee should amortize the lease asset in a 
systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. 
The notes to financial statements should include a description of leasing arrangements, the amount of 
lease assets recognized, and a schedule of future lease payments to be made. 

Lessor Accounting 

A lessor should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the commencement of 
the lease term, with certain exceptions for leases of assets held as investments, certain regulated leases, 
short-term leases, and leases that transfer ownership of the underlying asset. A lessor should not 
derecognize the asset underlying the lease. The lease receivable should be measured at the present value 
of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. The deferred inflow of resources should 
be measured at the value of the lease receivable plus any payments received at or before the 
commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods.  

A lessor should recognize interest revenue on the lease receivable and an inflow of resources (for example, 
revenue) from the deferred inflows of resources in a systematic and rational manner over the term of the 
lease. The notes to financial statements should include a description of leasing arrangements and the total 
amount of inflows of resources recognized from leases.  

Contracts with Multiple Components and Contract Combinations 

Generally, a government should account for the lease and nonlease components of a lease as separate 
contracts. If a lease involves multiple underlying assets, lessees and lessors in certain cases should account 
for each underlying asset as a separate lease contract. To allocate the contract price to different 
components, lessees and lessors should use contract prices for individual components as long as they do 
not appear to be unreasonable based on professional judgment, or use professional judgment to determine 
their best estimate if there are no stated prices or if stated prices appear to be unreasonable. If determining 
a best estimate is not practicable, multiple components in a lease contract should be accounted for as a 
single lease unit. Contracts that are entered into at or near the same time with the same counterparty and 
that meet certain criteria should be considered part of the same lease contract and should be evaluated in 
accordance with the guidance for contracts with multiple components. 
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Lease Modifications and Terminations 

An amendment to a lease contract should be considered a lease modification, unless the lessee’s right to 
use the underlying asset decreases, in which case it would be a partial or full lease termination. A lease 
termination should be accounted for by reducing the carrying values of the lease liability and lease asset 
by a lessee, or the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources by the lessor, with any difference 
being recognized as a gain or loss. A lease modification that does not qualify as a separate lease should 
be accounted for by remeasuring the lease liability and adjusting the related lease asset by a lessee and 
remeasuring the lease receivable and adjusting the related deferred inflows of resources by a lessor. 

Subleases and Leaseback Transactions 

Subleases should be treated as transactions separate from the original lease. The original lessee that 
becomes the lessor in a sublease should account for the original lease and the sublease as separate 
transactions, as a lessee and lessor, respectively. 

A transaction qualifies for sale-leaseback accounting only if it includes a sale. Otherwise, it is a borrowing. 
The sale and lease portions of a transaction should be accounted for as separate sale and lease transactions, 
except that any difference between the carrying value of the capital asset that was sold and the net proceeds 
from the sale should be reported as a deferred inflow of resources or a deferred outflow of resources and 
recognized over the term of the lease. 

A lease-leaseback transaction should be accounted for as a net transaction. The gross amounts of each 
portion of the transaction should be disclosed. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period in June 2018.  The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) 
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the 
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a 
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical 
cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. 

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as 
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively. 
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The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 61 in August 2018.  This Statement improves the consistency and comparability of 
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and improves the 
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity 
interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported 
as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A 
majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity 
method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary 
fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those 
governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. 

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should 
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the 
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This 
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results 
in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the 
government should report that organization as a component unit. 

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest 
account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at 
acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. 
Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include 
only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition.  

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019.  The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the provisions related 
to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a component unit if 
the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be applied on a 
prospective basis. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019.  The primary objectives 
of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those 
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit 
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting 
of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated 
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. 
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A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument having all of the following characteristics: 

• There are at least three parties involved: (1) an issuer, (2) a third-party obligor, and (3) a debt
holder or a debt trustee.

• The issuer and the third-party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity.
• The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross-collateralized with other debt

of the issuer.
• The third-party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from the debt

issuance.
• The third-party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all amounts

associated with the debt obligation (debt service payments).

All conduit debt obligations involve the issuer making a limited commitment. Some issuers extend 
additional commitments or voluntary commitments to support debt service in the event the third party is, 
or will be, unable to do so. 

An issuer should not recognize a conduit debt obligation as a liability. However, an issuer should 
recognize a liability associated with an additional commitment or a voluntary commitment to support debt 
service if certain recognition criteria are met. As long as a conduit debt obligation is outstanding, an issuer 
that has made an additional commitment should evaluate at least annually whether those criteria are met. 
An issuer that has made only a limited commitment should evaluate whether those criteria are met when 
an event occurs that causes the issuer to reevaluate its willingness or ability to support the obligor’s debt 
service through a voluntary commitment. 

This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with 
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the 
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities. 
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. During 
those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the 
obligors at the end of the arrangements. 

Issuers should not report those arrangements as leases, nor should they recognize a liability for the related 
conduit debt obligations or a receivable for the payments related to those arrangements. In addition, the 
following provisions apply: 

• If the title passes to the third-party obligor at the end of the arrangement, an issuer should not
recognize a capital asset.

• If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of the
entire capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer should not recognize a capital asset until
the arrangement ends.

• If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of only
portions of the capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer, at the inception of the arrangement,
should recognize the entire capital asset and a deferred inflow of resources. The deferred inflow
of resources should be reduced, and an inflow recognized, in a systematic and rational manner
over the term of the arrangement.
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This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations, 
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’ 
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities 
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about 
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2021. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 in January 2020.  The primary objectives of this 
Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the 
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics 
and includes specific provisions about the following: 

• The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-
3, Leases, for interim financial reports.

• Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) plan.

• The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets
accumulated for postemployment benefits.

• The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
postemployment benefit arrangements.

• Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a
government acquisition.

• Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess
insurers

• Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative
literature.

• Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.

The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, 
reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon 
issuance. The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the 
applicability of Statements 73 and 74 and application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit 
arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. The requirements related to the measurement 
of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with AROs in a government acquisition are effective for 
government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 
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The GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates in March 2020. Some 
governments have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an 
interbank offered rate (IBOR)—most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result 
of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, 
prompting governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR 
with other reference rates, by either changing the reference rate or adding or changing fallback provisions 
related to the reference rate. 

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, as amended, requires 
a government to terminate hedge accounting when it renegotiates or amends a critical term of a hedging 
derivative instrument, such as the reference rate of a hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment. 
In addition, in accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended, replacement of the rate on which 
variable payments depend in a lease contract would require a government to apply the provisions for lease 
modifications, including remeasurement of the lease liability or lease receivable. 

The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting 
implications that result from the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by: 

• Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting 
termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative 
instrument’s variable payment. 

• Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace 
the reference rate. 

• Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, 
affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable. 

• Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the 
effectiveness of an interest rate swap. 

• Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as 
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an 
interest rate swap. 

• Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended. 

Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease 
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend. 

The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods 
ending after December 31, 2022. All other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 
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The GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangements in March 2020. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements 
(PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) 
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by 
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital 
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some 
PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this 
Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the 
transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to 
provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be 
charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service 
utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. 

This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment 
arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government 
compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or 
operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. 

This Statement requires that PPPs that meet the definition of a lease apply the guidance in Statement No. 
87, Leases, as amended, if existing assets of the transferor that are not required to be improved by the 
operator as part of the PPP arrangement are the only underlying PPP assets and the PPP does not meet the 
definition of an SCA. This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting requirements for all 
other PPPs: those that either (1) meet the definition of an SCA or (2) are not within the scope of Statement 
87, as amended (as clarified by this Statement). The PPP term is defined as the period during which an 
operator has a noncancellable right to use an underlying PPP asset, plus, if applicable, certain periods if 
it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that the transferor or the operator either will exercise 
an option to extend the PPP or will not exercise an option to terminate the PPP. 

A transferor generally should recognize an underlying PPP asset as an asset in financial statements 
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. However, in the case of an underlying PPP 
asset that is not owned by the transferor or is not the underlying asset of an SCA, a transferor should 
recognize a receivable measured based on the operator’s estimated carrying value of the underlying PPP 
asset as of the expected date of the transfer in ownership. In addition, a transferor should recognize a 
receivable for installment payments, if any, to be received from the operator in relation to the PPP. 
Measurement of a receivable for installment payments should be at the present value of the payments 
expected to be received during the PPP term. A transferor also should recognize a deferred inflow of 
resources for the consideration received or to be received by the transferor as part of the PPP. Revenue 
should be recognized by a transferor in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term. 
This Statement requires a transferor to recognize a receivable for installment payments and a deferred 
inflow of resources to account for a PPP in financial statements prepared using the current financial 
resources measurement focus. Governmental fund revenue would be recognized in a systematic and 
rational manner over the PPP term. 
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This Statement also provides specific guidance in financial statements prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus for a government that is an operator in a PPP that either (1) meets the 
definition of an SCA or (2) is not within the scope of Statement 87, as amended (as clarified in this 
Statement). An operator should report an intangible right-to-use asset related to an underlying PPP asset 
that either is owned by the transferor or is the underlying asset of an SCA. Measurement of the right-to-
use asset should be the amount of consideration to be provided to the transferor, plus any payments made 
to the transferor at or before the commencement of the PPP term, and certain direct costs. For an 
underlying PPP asset that is not owned by the transferor and is not the underlying asset of an SCA, an 
operator should recognize a liability measured based on the estimated carrying value of the underlying 
PPP asset as of the expected date of the transfer in ownership. In addition, an operator should recognize 
a liability for installment payments, if any, to be made to the transferor in relation to the PPP. 
Measurement of a liability for installment payments should be at the present value of the payments 
expected to be made during the PPP term. An operator also should recognize a deferred outflow of 
resources for the consideration provided or to be provided to the transferor as part of the PPP. Expense 
should be recognized by an operator in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term. 

This Statement also requires a government to account for PPP and non-PPP components of a PPP as 
separate contracts. If a PPP involves multiple underlying assets, a transferor and an operator in certain 
cases should account for each underlying PPP asset as a separate PPP. To allocate the contract price to 
different components, a transferor and an operator should use contract prices for individual components 
as long as they do not appear to be unreasonable based on professional judgment or use professional 
judgment to determine their best estimate if there are no stated prices or if stated prices appear to be 
unreasonable. If determining the best estimate is not practicable, multiple components in a PPP should be 
accounted for as a single PPP. 

This Statement also requires an amendment to a PPP to be considered a PPP modification, unless the 
operator’s right to use the underlying PPP asset decreases, in which case it should be considered a partial 
or full PPP termination. A PPP termination should be accounted for by a transferor by reducing, as 
applicable, any receivable for installment payments or any receivable related to the transfer of ownership 
of the underlying PPP asset and by reducing the related deferred inflow of resources. An operator should 
account for a termination by reducing the carrying value of the right-to-use asset and, as applicable, any 
liability for installment payments or liability to transfer ownership of the underlying PPP asset. A PPP 
modification that does not qualify as a separate PPP should be accounted for by remeasuring PPP assets 
and liabilities. 

An APA that is related to designing, constructing, and financing a nonfinancial asset in which ownership 
of the asset transfers by the end of the contract should be accounted for by a government as a financed 
purchase of the underlying nonfinancial asset. This Statement requires a government that engaged in an 
APA that contains multiple components to recognize each component as a separate arrangement. An APA 
that is related to operating or maintaining a nonfinancial asset should be reported by a government as an 
outflow of resources in the period to which payments relate. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.  
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The GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements in 
May 2020. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-
based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This 
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—
an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for 
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires 
note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the 
standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  

A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (a SBITA 
vendor’s) information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the 
underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. 

The subscription term includes the period during which a government has a noncancellable right to use 
the underlying IT assets. The subscription term also includes periods covered by an option to extend (if it 
is reasonably certain that the government or SBITA vendor will exercise that option) or to terminate (if it 
is reasonably certain that the government or SBITA vendor will not exercise that option). 

Under this Statement, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—an 
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability. A government should recognize the 
subscription liability at the commencement of the subscription term, —which is when the subscription 
asset is placed into service. The subscription liability should be initially measured at the present value of 
subscription payments expected to be made during the subscription term. Future subscription payments 
should be discounted using the interest rate the SBITA vendor charges the government, which may be 
implicit, or the government’s incremental borrowing rate if the interest rate is not readily determinable. 
A government should recognize amortization of the discount on the subscription liability as an outflow of 
resources (for example, interest expense) in subsequent financial reporting periods. 

The subscription asset should be initially measured as the sum of (1) the initial subscription liability 
amount, (2) payments made to the SBITA vendor before commencement of the subscription term, and (3) 
capitalizable implementation costs, less any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before the 
commencement of the subscription term. A government should recognize amortization of the subscription 
asset as an outflow of resources over the subscription term. 

Activities associated with a SBITA, other than making subscription payments, should be grouped into the 
following three stages, and their costs should be accounted for accordingly: 

• Preliminary Project Stage, including activities such as evaluating alternatives, determining
needed technology, and selecting a SBITA vendor. Outlays in this stage should be expensed as
incurred.

• Initial Implementation Stage, including all ancillary charges necessary to place the subscription
asset into service. Outlays in this stage generally should be capitalized as an addition to the
subscription asset.

• Operation and Additional Implementation Stage, including activities such as subsequent
implementation activities, maintenance, and other activities for a government’s ongoing
operations related to a SBITA. Outlays in this stage should be expensed as incurred unless they
meet specific capitalization criteria.
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In classifying certain outlays into the appropriate stage, the nature of the activity should be the determining 
factor. Training costs should be expensed as incurred, regardless of the stage in which they are incurred. 

If a SBITA contract contains multiple components, a government should account for each component as 
a separate SBITA or nonsubscription component and allocate the contract price to the different 
components. If it is not practicable to determine a best estimate for price allocation for some or all 
components in the contract, a government should account for those components as a single SBITA. 

This Statement provides an exception for short-term SBITAs. Short-term SBITAs have a maximum 
possible term under the SBITA contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless 
of their probability of being exercised. Subscription payments for short-term SBITAs should be 
recognized as outflows of resources. 

This Statement requires a government to disclose descriptive information about its SBITAs other than 
short-term SBITAs, such as the amount of the subscription asset, accumulated amortization, other 
payments not included in the measurement of a subscription liability, principal and interest requirements 
for the subscription liability, and other essential information. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – an Amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 in June 2020. The 
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the 
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not 
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically 
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension 
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other 
than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in 
fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the 
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation 
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through 
those plans. 

This Statement requires that for purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially 
accountable for a potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that is a defined 
contribution pension plan, a defined contribution OPEB plan, or another employee benefit plan (for 
example, certain Section 457 plans), the absence of a governing board should be treated the same as the 
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that 
a governing board typically would perform. 

This Statement also requires that the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 84, 
Fiduciary Activities, be applicable to only defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans 
that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement No. 67, Financial 
Reporting for Pension Plans, or paragraph 3 of Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, respectively.  
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This Statement (1) requires that a Section 457 plan be classified as either a pension plan or another 
employee benefit plan depending on whether the plan meets the definition of a pension plan and (2) 
clarifies that Statement 84, as amended, should be applied to all arrangements organized under IRC 
Section 457 to determine whether those arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities. 

This Statement supersedes the remaining provisions of Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, as amended, regarding 
investment valuation requirements for Section 457 plans. As a result, investments of all Section 457 plans 
should be measured as of the end of the plan’s reporting period in all circumstances. 

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that 
a governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the 
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially 
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other 
employee benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 
of Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered 
through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, 
respectively, are effective immediately. 

The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for 
Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of 
determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, 
the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a 
governing board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if 
the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform, are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  
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GASB currently has a variety of projects in process. Some of these projects discussed below. 

Conceptual Framework – Disclosure.   The project’s objective is to develop concepts related to a 
framework for the development and evaluation of notes to financial statements for the purpose of 
improving the effectiveness of note disclosures in government financial reports.  The framework will 
establish criteria for the Board to use in evaluating potential note disclosure requirements during future 
standards-setting activities and in reexamining existing note disclosure requirements. Those concepts also 
will provide governments a basis for considering the essentiality of information items for which the GASB 
does not specifically provide authoritative disclosure guidance.  This project is currently in the ballot draft 
period, with an estimated completion of April 2021. 

Conceptual Framework – Recognition.  The project’s objective is to develop recognition criteria for 
whether information should be reported in state and local governmental financial statements and when 
that information should be reported.  This project ultimately will lead to a Concepts Statement on 
recognition of elements of financial statements.  The project is currently in the comment period, with an 
estimated completion of February 2021. 

Financial Reporting Model.  The objective of this project is to make improvements to the financial 
reporting model, including Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, and other reporting model-related 
pronouncements (Statements No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities, No. 37, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, No. 41, Budgetary Comparison 
Schedules – Perspective Differences, and No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation, and 
Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements).  The objective of these improvements would be to enhance 
the effectiveness of the model in providing information that is essential for decision-making and enhance 
the ability to assess a government’s accounting and address certain application issues, based upon the 
results of the pre-agenda research on the financial reporting model.  The project is currently in the 
comment period, with an estimated completion of June 2022. 

Revenue and Expense Recognition.  The objective of this project is to develop a comprehensive 
application model for the classification, recognition, and measurement of revenues and expenses. The 
purpose for developing a comprehensive model is (1) to improve the information regarding revenues and 
expenses that users need to make decisions and assess accountability, (2) to provide guidance regarding 
exchange and exchange-like transactions that have not been specifically addressed, (3) to evaluate revenue 
and expense recognition in the context of the conceptual framework, and (4) to address application issues 
identified in practice, based upon the results of the pre-agenda research on revenue for exchange and 
exchange-like transactions. The project is currently in the comment period, with an estimated completion 
of February 2021. 
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Client: 1600100.000 - Greater Richmond Transit Company

Engagement: 21 AUD - GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

Trial Balance: 3000.1 - Trial Balance Database - GRTC

Workpaper: 3705a - Adjusting Journal Entries Report - GRTC

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4 4642

000-111-99-999-G Accumulated Depreciation 3,735,520.00

000-407-99-005-G Gains on Property Disposals 363,145.00

000-111-01-108-G DHG.014 Buses, Vans and Vehciles 4,098,665.00

Total 4,098,665.00 4,098,665.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5 4631

199-999-99-999-G Depreciation Expense 4,696,561.00

DHG.032 Audit Account - Amortization Expense 413,633.00

000-111-99-998-G DHG.031 Accumulated Amortization 413,633.00

000-111-99-999-G Accumulated Depreciation 4,696,561.00

Total 5,110,194.00 5,110,194.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6 6130

180-509-02-065-G Executive Office Supplies & Other Expenses 6.00

000-305-98-002-G Fund Balance 6.00

Total 6.00 6.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 7 5801

000-201-01-069-G OPEB payable 3,704,099.00

000-241-99-997-G Deferred Inflows GASB 75 19,450.00

000-101-99-998-G Deferred Outflows GASB 75 1,338,757.00

000-305-98-002-G Fund Balance 2,384,792.00

Total 3,723,549.00 3,723,549.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 8 5750

000-241-99-999-G Deferred Inflows GASB 68 2,859,708.00

199-999-99-002-G GASB 68 Pension Expense 7,675,027.00

000-101-99-999-G Deferred Outflows GASB 68 2,074,713.00

000-241-99-998-G Net Pension Liablity GASB 68 8,460,022.00

Total 10,534,735.00 10,534,735.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 9 5250

000-305-98-002-G Fund Balance 753,677.00

BE.007 Accrued Compensated Absence 603,116.00

BE.008 Compensated Absence Expense 150,561.00

Total 753,677.00 753,677.00

To adjust beginning net position to match PY ending.

To book disposal of FA's

To record CY Depreciation.

To adjust the OPEB liability based on the client's analysis for FY21.

To adjust pension related amounts.

To record the current year compensated absence balance and adjust beginning net 

position for PY balance.

1 of 1
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Client: 1600100.000 - Greater Richmond Transit Company

Engagement: 21 AUD - GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

Period Ending: 6/30/2021

Trial Balance: 3000.3 - Consolidated Trial Balance - GRTC/RideFinders

Workpaper: 3710c - Eliminating Journal Entries Report - GRTC & RideFinders

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

2420

000-201-01-001-00001G A/P Unaudited Vouchers - Month End Reversing 37,762.00

000-102-07-015-G A/R - Ridefinders 37,762.00

Total 37,762.00 37,762.00

GRTC TB

000-440-99-007-G Ridefinders - leased personel 480,934.00

179-501-02-013-R Salary Ridefinders Admin & Gen. 480,934.00

Total 480,934.00 480,934.00

Total Eliminating Journal Entries 518,696.00 518,696.00

Total All Journal Entries 518,696.00 518,696.00

To eliminate leased personnel revenues and expenses.

Eliminating Journal Entries JE # 2

To eliminate GRTC/RideFinders intercompany balances.

Eliminating Journal Entries JE # 1

Eliminating Journal Entries

1 of 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 
Richmond, Virginia 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Richmond Transit Company and its 
blended component unit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Greater Richmond Transit Company’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Greater Richmond Transit Company and its blended component unit as of June 30, 2021, and the 
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Correction of an Error 

As described in Note 18, the beginning net position for fiscal year 2021 was restated to reflect an adjustment 
related to Greater Richmond Transit Company’s other post-employment plan and compensated absences. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Greater Richmond Transit Company’s 2020 financial statements, and we 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated 
December 8, 2020, and updated on January 27, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information 
presented herein, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the 
audited financial statements from which it was derived. Because information to restate prior years in relation 
to the correction of an error, discussed in the preceding paragraph, is not readily available, the comparative 
information has not been restated. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion 
and analysis and net pension liability information and related ratios, including contributions and related notes 
on pages 4 through 8 and 34 through 36 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Greater Richmond Transit Company’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related notes are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2021, 
on our consideration of the Greater Richmond Transit Company’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
October 28, 2021 
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Herein contained are the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, for the Greater Richmond 
Transit Company (the “Company”). This report contains the Company's Statement of Net Position, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows. This information, in conjunction 
with the related notes, provides full disclosure of all the material financial operations of the Company. These 
statements are the representations of management, who bears the responsibility for their accuracy, completeness 
and fairness. Management is committed to provide accurate, concise and quality financial information to the 
governmental supporters, residential users of our services, and to all other interested parties. Management believes 
the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects, and fairly sets forth the financial position and results of 
operations of the Company and makes disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a well-informed 
understanding of the financial affairs of the Company. 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued a Statement titled, Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. This statement, known 
as the "Reporting Model" statement, affects the way the Company prepares and presents financial information. The 
statement established the current requirements and reporting model for the annual financial reports of state and local 
governments. The Statement was developed to make annual reports easy to understand and useful to the people who 
use governmental financial information to make decisions. The following are required by the statement: 

Statement of Net Position 

This statement is designed to display the financial position of the Company. This statement reports all assets, 
including capital assets and infrastructure, and liabilities of the Company. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

This statement reports revenues and expenses in a format that focuses on the entire operating results of the 
Company. Other non-operating revenues, operating contributions and capital asset transactions are also included in 
this statement. 

In addition, the Company restated its beginning net position by $1,631,115 to reflect adjustments related to its other 
postemployment benefit plans and compensated absences. Additional information on this restatement can be found 
in Note 18 to the basic financial statements. Comparative prior year information, to the extent presented, has not 
been restated because the necessary information is not available. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

This statement shows the actual cash inflows and outflows of the Company using the direct method of presentation. 

Management's discussion and analysis regarding the results of operations and financial position as of June 30, 2021 
and 2020, and for the years then ended follows. 

Results of Operations 

2021 2020 

Passenger revenue $ - $ 5,051,406 
Governmental purchased service 5,313,232 8,938,765 
Charter revenue 2,655 55,692 
Special service revenue 842,132 1,619,166 
Advertising revenue 827,821 894,244 

Total operating revenues 6,985,840 16,559,273 

Salaries and wages 25,383,138 24,642,765 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 22,193,917 18,885,774 
Fees and services 1,495,246 2,414,345 
Materials and supplies 6,429,058 6,879,189 
Utilities 614,358 603,151 
Insurance 1,743,246 2,008,059 
Purchased transportation services 4,769,143 5,004,815 
Other  997,906 1,028,350 
CARES Act expenses 1,651,006 489,263 
Depreciation and amortization 9,910,735 10,449,040 

Total operating expenses 75,187,753 72,404,751 

Operating loss (68,201,913) (55,845,478) 

Other non-operating revenues 428,349 398,621 
Operating contributions 50,471,907 39,639,408 
Capital grant contributions 1,562,106 2,265,934 
(Loss) gain on disposal of capital assets (21,155) 42,074 

Change in net position (15,760,706) (13,499,441) 

Net position, beginning of year, as restated (Note 18) 42,328,856 54,197,182 

Net position, end of year $ 26,568,150 $ 40,697,741 
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Results of Operations 

The Company's results of operations for the year ended June 30, 2021, reflect a decrease in total net position of 
$15,760,706. 

All services provided by the Company are dependent upon the availability of operating revenues, non-operating 
revenues, operating contributions and capital grant contributions. Operating revenues include passenger revenue 
from transit and CARE ticket sales, along with fare box recoveries; governmental revenues in the form of purchase-
of-service agreements with local governments; charter revenue for charter services provided through local 
transportation companies; special service revenue in the form of contract business with local universities; and 
advertising revenue from sales of various bus advertising displays. Much of the funding is based directly on service 
levels and ridership. 

With the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, ridership decreased between 30% to 40% overall from 2019 
levels. During FY 2021, ridership recovered to approximately 87% of the pre-pandemic levels. Understanding that 
a significant portion of riders were essential front line workers, the Company stopped charging fares in March 2020 
and continued with zero fares throughout FY 2021. The Company has utilized Federal COVID Relief funding to 
fill the funding void as a result of the zero-fare program. 

Operating revenue of $6,985,840 in FY 2021 decreased $9,573,433 from FY 2020. The zero-fare program decreased 
passenger fare revenue to $-0- for FY 2021 down from the FY 2020 amount of $5,051,406. 

Governmental purchased service revenue also decreased in FY 2021 by $3,625,533 a result of decreased service in 
Henrico and Chesterfield Counties. The demand for charters was down for FY 2021 due to reduced demands of 
businesses under COVID pandemic restrictions which resulted in decreased Charter revenue. Special service 
revenue decreased in FY 2021 by $777,034, due to the contract price adjustments with Virginia Commonwealth 
University as the University’s students were remote for the academic year. Advertising revenue decreased slightly 
in FY 2021 by $66,423, because of economic struggles of small businesses during the pandemic slowdown and 
shutdown. 

An increase in operating expenses of $2,783,002 also contributed to the decrease in the Company’s net position. 
The increase in operating expenses is primarily due to increases in salaries and wages and employee benefits and 
payroll taxes of $740,372 and $3,308,443, respectively, and also due to GASB 68 required pension reporting 
increase of approximately $1.9M with the remaining approximately $1.4M pertaining to the increased rate of the 
Company’s medical insurance plan, current labor contract and annual cost of living increases for salaried 
employees, along with applicable payroll taxes and pension match.  

Fees and services decreased in FY 2021 by $919,099, due to the elimination of contracted fare collection services 
and fare media stock, reduction in vanpool service and computer maintenance contracts. Materials and supplies 
decreased in FY 2021 by $450,131, due to reduction in fleet repairs for rolling stock and support vehicles, as a 
result of lower staffing levels combined with limited availability of parts. Utilities costs were up in FY 2021 by 
$11,207. Insurance costs decreased during FY 2021 by $264,813, a result of decreased claims payout. 
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Results of Operations (Continued) 

Purchased transportation costs decreased in FY 2021 by $235,672. Specialized service includes the paratransit 
(CARE) service, Care on Demand, as well as the welfare-to-work (CVAN) service. GRTC provided an optional 
premium service “Care on Demand” that supports the paratransit eligible participant to book their services the same 
day with singular occupancy for their trip. This service reduces the overall cost per trip and was a portion of the 
cause for the decreased expenses. However, the primary cause of decreased expenses was the result of reduced 
demand due to the COVID pandemic. Demand for CARE service was at approximately 76% of its pre-pandemic 
levels during this period which resulted in a reduction in expenses. This was offset by using specialized services to 
support fixed route services during the pandemic in order to reduce passenger load per vehicle. 

Other operating expenses decreased in FY 2021 by $30,444, due to a reduction in advertising commission expense. 
The Company incurred CARES Act expenses of $1,651,006 in FY 2021, which consisted of personal protective 
equipment for employees, contract cleaning services for daily cleaning of vehicles, bus barriers, shields and 
additional labor for sanitation of buses. 

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $538,305 in FY 2021 due to the disposal of 32 buses, vans and vehicles. 

Other non-operating revenues include interest on cash temporarily idle during the year that is invested in a highly 
liquid investment portfolio with the Virginia Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and other income not part 
of the ordinary income from operations. Other non-operating revenues increased in FY 2021 by $29,728, primarily 
due to higher cash balances versus the prior year. 

Operating contributions, which accounts for approximately 67% in FY 2021 and 55% in FY 2020 of operating 
expenses, respectively, came directly from various governmental grant subsidies from the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA), City of Richmond, Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (State) and other 
local organizations. Funding from the Federal Government increased by $18,227,205 in FY 2021. This increase 
was due to utilization of approximately $25.883M of Federal COVID Relief funding to completely replace fare 
revenue, reductions in special service revenues, additional operating expense caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, 
and other federally eligible expenses for reimbursement. City funding decreased for FY 2021 by $7,957,684, while 
State funding only increased by $472,400 compared to FY 2020 when approximately $1.168M was received for 
Emergency Funding due to the onset of COVID-19. 

Capital grant contributions are used to purchase nearly all capital assets of the Company and include funding from 
the Federal Transit Administration, City of Richmond, and the Virginia Department of Rail and Public 
Transportation. Capital grant contributions decreased in FY 2021 by $703,828 as a result of fewer capital projects 
being developed during the year. 

The decrease in net position of $15,760,706 includes $17,586,762 in noncash operating expenses relating to 
depreciation and amortization of $9,910,735 and GASB 68 pension expense of $7,675,027 recorded in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

102



GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2021 

8 

Results of Operations (Continued) 

Financial Position 
2021 2020 

Current and other assets $ 43,499,743 $ 27,546,292 
Capital assets  68,543,722 77,255,496 

Total assets 112,043,465 104,801,788 

Deferred outflows 26,724,818 30,138,288 

Current liabilities 9,048,991 9,278,423 
Long-term liabilities 80,451,740 75,711,238 

Total liabilities 89,500,731 84,989,661 

Deferred inflows 22,699,402 9,252,674 

Net investment in capital assets 68,543,722 77,255,496 
Restricted 2,719,786 2,719,786 
Unrestricted (44,695,358) (39,277,541) 

Net position $ 26,568,150 $ 40,697,741 

Financial Position 

Current and other assets increased by $15,953,451, primarily due to receipt of distributions from Central Virginia 
Transportation Authority (CVTA) to be expended in accordance with the approved Regional Public Transportation 
Plan for FY 2022. Capital assets decreased by $8,711,774, primarily due to the annual depreciation and amortization 
of our capital assets. Current liabilities decreased by $229,432 due to lower accounts payable due to COVID’s impact 
on purchased transportation and other expenses related to fare collection. Long-term liabilities increased by 
$4,740,502, primarily due to the pension liability. 

Requests for Information 

The financial report is designated to provide our customers, investors and creditors with general overview of GRTC’s 
finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief 
Financial Officer, 301 East Belt Boulevard, Richmond, Virginia 23224. 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2021

For Comparative
Purposes Only

2021 2020

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 25,070,127$           7,893,075$             
Receivables:

Grants (Note 4) 6,977,619            7,200,315            
Trade 318,936               501,367               
Other 1,153,176            1,447,193            

Total  receivables 8,449,731               9,148,875               
Allowance for doubtful accounts (15,718)               (12,622)               

Net receivables 8,434,013               9,136,253               

Prepaid expenses 597,172 1,143,680               

Total current assets 34,101,312             18,173,008             

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 3 and 5) 2,719,786 2,719,786

OTHER ASSETS
Materials and supplies 905,679 880,532
Cash and cash equivalents, board-designated (Notes 3 and 8) 5,772,966               5,772,966               

Total other assets 6,678,645               6,653,498               

Capital assets, net (Note 5) 68,543,722             77,255,496             

Total assets 112,043,465           104,801,788           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals (Note 6) 26,724,818             28,799,531             
Other post-employment benefit deferrals (Notes 13 and 18) - 1,338,757

Total deferred outflows of resources 26,724,818             30,138,288             

Total assets and deferred outflows 138,768,283$         134,940,076$         
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2021

For Comparative
Purposes Only

2021 2020

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,663,453$             3,887,889$             
Accrued expenses:

Salaries and wages 1,791,780               1,135,968               
Payroll taxes 186,856 96,144 
Retirement contribuitons 211,533 161,205 
Accrued uninsured accident claims (Note 7) 172,475 350,650 
Other accrued expenses 1,252,756               811,928 

Compensated absences 603,116 - 
Unearned revenue 397,478 518,642 
Grant funding received in advance:

Federal 39,028 39,028 
Local 2,171,995               1,733,869               

Note payable, City of Richmond 543,100 543,100 
Other post-employment benefits (Notes 13 and 18) 15,421 - 

Total current liabilities 9,048,991               9,278,423               

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Other post-employment benefits (Notes 13 and 18) - 3,719,520 
Net pension liability (Note 6) 80,451,740             71,991,718 

Total long-term liabilities 80,451,740             75,711,238             

Total liabilities 89,500,731             84,989,661             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals (Note 6) 6,373,516               9,233,224               
Other post-employment benefit deferrals (Notes 13 and 18) - 19,450 
Unearned and deferred revenue - Central Virginia

Transit Authority (CVTA) funds (Note 19) 16,325,886             - 

Total deferred inflows of resources 22,699,402             9,252,674               

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 68,543,722             77,255,496             
Restricted (Notes 3 and 5) 2,719,786               2,719,786               
Unrestricted (44,695,358)            (39,277,541)            

Total net position 26,568,150             40,697,741             

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position 138,768,283$         134,940,076$         
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2021

For Comparative
Purposes Only

2021 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger -$                            5,051,406$             
Governmental purchased service 5,313,232               8,938,765               
Charter 2,655                      55,692                    
Special service 842,132                  1,619,166               
Advertising 827,821                  894,244                  

Total operating revenues 6,985,840               16,559,273             

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 25,383,138             24,642,765             
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 22,193,917             18,885,774             
Fees and services 1,495,246               2,414,345               
Materials and supplies 6,429,058               6,879,189               
Utilities 614,358                  603,151                  
Insurance and provision for uninsured accident claims 1,743,246               2,008,059               
Purchased transportation services (Note 12) 4,769,143               5,004,815               
Other 997,906                  1,028,350               
COVID-19 expense 1,651,006               489,263                  
Depreciation and amortization 9,910,735               10,449,040             

Total operating expenses 75,187,753             72,404,751             

Operating loss (68,201,913)            (55,845,478)            

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Operating contributions:

Federal Transit Administration 3,825,786               8,349,969               
Federal Transit Administration CARES funds 25,883,499             3,132,111               
City of Richmond 7,957,684               15,915,368             
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation 12,028,253             10,322,984             
Virginia Department of Rail and Public 
  Transportation - CMAQ 602,674                  667,506                  
Virginia Department of Rail and Public 

Transportation emergency funding -                              1,168,037               
Other local organizations 174,011                  83,433                    

Total operating contributions 50,471,907             39,639,408             
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2021

For Comparative
Purposes Only

2021 2020

Capital transactions:
Capital grant contributions 1,562,106$             2,265,934$             
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (21,155) 42,074 

Total capital transactions 1,540,951               2,308,008 

Other income:
Interest income 52,021 237,028 
Other income 376,328 161,593 

Total other income 428,349 398,621 

Total nonoperating revenues 52,441,207             42,346,037             

Change in net position (15,760,706)            (13,499,441)            

Net position, beginning of year, as restated (Note 18) 42,328,856             54,197,182             

Net position, end of year 26,568,150$           40,697,741$           
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2021

For Comparative
Purposes Only

2021 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from passengers 185,527$ 5,044,991$             
Governmental purchased service receipts 5,607,249               9,644,200               
Other receipts 1,551,444               2,439,056               
Payments to employees (24,877,887)            (23,998,444)            
Payment to employee benefits and payroll taxes (13,390,514)            (12,531,253)            
Payments to suppliers and others (20,127,721)            (23,764,631)            

Net cash used by operating activities (51,051,902)            (43,166,081)            

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 52,021 237,028

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (1,562,108)              (2,265,934)              
Proceeds from disposal and sale of capital assets 341,992 62,033
Capital contributions Central Virgina Transportation Authority 598,642 - 
Capital grants related local contributions 1,562,106               2,265,934               

Net cash provided by capital financing activities 940,632 62,033

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating contributions from federal, state, and local sources 51,132,729             41,926,723             
Operating contributions from Central Virgina 

Transportation Authority 15,727,244             - 
Miscellaneous nonoperating revenue received 376,328 161,593

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 67,236,301             42,088,316             

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,177,052             (778,704) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 16,385,827             17,164,531             

End of year 33,562,879$           16,385,827$           

SUMMARY OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, current 25,070,127$           7,893,075$             
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 2,719,786               2,719,786               
Cash and cash equivalents, board designated 5,772,966               5,772,966               

33,562,879$           16,385,827$           
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2021

For Comparative
Purposes Only

2021 2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss (68,201,913)$          (55,845,478)$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 9,910,735               10,449,040             
Pension expense, net of employer contributions 7,675,027               5,783,356               
OPEB expense - 510,554
Change in current assets and liabilities:

Receivables, trade and other, net 479,544 699,020
Prepaid expenses 546,508 80,750
Materials and supplies (25,147) (19,437) 
Accounts payable (2,224,436)              (5,643,551)              
Accrued expenses 1,059,505               949,711
Compensated absences (150,561) -
Unearned revenue (121,164) (130,046) 

Net cash used by operating activities (51,051,902)$          (43,166,081)$          
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 Organization 

Reporting entity 

Greater Richmond Transit Company (the Company or GRTC) is a public service corporation incorporated on 
April 12, 1973, and organized to provide mass transportation services to the Richmond Metropolitan area. 
The Company began operations on September 1, 1973, by purchasing the assets of the Virginia Transit 
Company. The Company is a joint venture between the City of Richmond and County of Chesterfield, 
Virginia to provide mass transportation for passengers on a regional basis and associated para-transit service 
mandated by the Americans with Disabilities Act for the purposes of providing continuous services within 
and between the jurisdictions of the City of Richmond, Chesterfield County and Henrico County. The 
Company is governed by a six-member board of directors; three of which are appointed by the City of 
Richmond and three of which are appointed by Chesterfield County. 

The accompanying annual financial report includes the financial activities of the Company, and its blended 
component unit, Ridefinders. Financial information for the Company and the blended component unit is 
accounted for in the accompanying financial statements in accordance with principles defining the 
governmental reporting entity adopted by the Government Accounting Standards Board. 

Blended Component Unit 

Greater Richmond Transit Company is non-stock, non-profit corporation established to foster community 
participation in the Greater Richmond, Virginia area in ridesharing activities, including carpools, vanpools, 
and traditional transit. Ridefinders is the regional non-profit ridesharing and transportation demand 
management agency that works to move more commuters in fewer vehicles throughout the Central Virginia 
region to protect air quality and increase the efficiency of the region’s transportation network. The Company 
and Ridefinders have a financial and operational relationship which requires that Ridefinders’ financial 
statements be blended into the Company’s financial statements. Condensed combining financial statements 
for the Company and its blended component unit are presented in Note 16. 

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies affecting the significant elements of the financial statements are as follows: 

• The financial statements are reported and accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting wherein all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of 
these activities are included in the statement of net position. 

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP). The Company applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. 

In June 1999, the GASB issued a statement titled, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. This statement, known as the "Reporting Model" statement, 
affects the way the Company prepares and presents financial information. The statement established new 
requirements and a new reporting model for the annual financial reports of state and local governments. The 
statement was developed to make annual reports easy to understand and useful to the people who use 
governmental financial information to make decisions and includes: 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The reporting model statement requires that financial statements be accompanied by a narrative introduction
and analytical overview of the government's financial activities in the form of “management’s discussion and
analysis" (MD&A). This analysis is similar to analysis the private sector provides in their annual reports.

Statement of net position

This statement is designed to display the financial position of the governmental entity. Governments report
all assets, including capital assets and infrastructure, in the statement of net position.

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position

This statement reports revenues and expenses in a format that focuses on the entire operating results of the
governmental entity. Capital asset transactions are included in this statement.

Statement of cash flows

This statement is displayed using a direct format whereby actual cash inflows and outflows are presented.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses reported during that period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Revenues and expenses

Passenger fares, charter, special service and advertising revenues are recorded as revenue at the time such
services are performed. Revenues from governmental grants are earned when the expenses related to the
grants are incurred.

Governmental purchased service is comprised of funds received from the County of Henrico to subsidize the
operation of bus routes in the County and to provide specialized transportation services for the disabled in
Henrico. These services also include funds received from the City of Richmond and surrounding localities to
provide transportation services, including welfare-to-work.

The Company reports as nonoperating revenues and expenses amounts arising from capital asset transactions,
operating grant contributions from governmental entities, investment related transactions and miscellaneous
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Operating losses are subsidized in part by operating grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA),
the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT), and the City of Richmond. The funding
from VDRPT is for fuel, tires, maintenance parts and supplies and administrative expenses. Among other
requirements of the FTA grants, state and local governments must provide a certain matching share of funds
and/or support (as defined by FTA guidelines) for operating assistance. The FTA, state and city grants are
subject to financial and compliance audits. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to the
granting agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include short term, highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months 
or less. Designated cash at June 30, 2021, represents funds reserved by the Board of Directors for a 
contingency fund for unforeseen events. Restricted cash at June 30, 2021, is comprised of funds restricted for 
future eligible capital projects as required by FTA. 

Trade receivables 

Trade accounts receivable primarily represent balances owed for advertising and marketing with the 
Company and bus services within the Richmond area and part of Chesterfield and Henrico counties. The 
Company grants credit to customers, substantially all of whom are businesses located in the vicinity of the 
operating locations. The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts that is based upon a review 
of outstanding receivables, historical collection information, and existing economic conditions. Delinquent 
receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer. 

Materials and supplies 

Materials and supplies, consisting primarily of replacement parts for transit equipment, are stated at cost using 
the moving-average cost method wherein after each goods acquisition, the average unit cost of an item is 
recomputed by adding the cost of the newly acquired goods or units to the cost of the units already in 
inventory. 

Capital assets 

The Company's capital assets with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost. The 
Company does not possess infrastructure. The Company generally capitalizes assets with cost of $5,000 or 
more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using 
the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation 
are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded as a capital transaction 
on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets held and used 
is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted expected cash flows. Future 
events could cause the Company to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that long-lived assets may 
be impaired. 

Depreciable assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 

   Buildings 10 to 30 years 
   Buses, vans, vehicles 5-10 years 
   Bus stop and parking facilities  5-10 years 
   Shop and garage equipment  5-10 years 
   Office furniture and equipment 5 years 
   Software 5 years 
   Bus communication and other equipment 5 years 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Grants

Grant funding received in advance represents grant assets received but for which revenue recognition criteria
has not yet been met (i.e. funds have not yet been spent for grant-related purposes).

Note payable

The note payable - City of Richmond is a non-interest bearing unsecured note, which is due on demand. At
June 30, 2021, the fair value of the indebtedness approximates the amount recorded in the financial
statements.

Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which
revenue recognition criteria have not been met.

Unearned and deferred revenue

Deferred revenues represents resources that are received that are attributable to a future period. During 2021,
the Company received funding from the newly created Central Virginia Transit Authority (CVTA) that is to
be used to capital and operation needs for fiscal year 2022. The total is reflected as unearned and deferred
revenue on the statement of net position. See Note 19 for additional information.

Net position

Net position is the difference between assets/deferred outflows of resources and liabilities / deferred inflows
of resources. Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, less accumulated depreciation less any
outstanding debt related to acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

When net position resources are available for a specific purpose in more than one classification, it is the
Company’s policy to use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted and unrestricted as
they are needed.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred.

Income taxes

The Company, as an entity formed to serve the City of Richmond and Chesterfield County (governmental
entities), is exempt from federal and state income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, checking accounts, and the Virginia Local Government 
Investment Pool (LGIP). All investment accounts maintained by the Company must abide by the general 
investment criteria established by the Commonwealth of Virginia for public funds. 
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
Custodial Credit Risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Company's deposits may 
not be returned or the Company will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside 
party. Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Company's investment 
in a single issuer. Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate 
changes. Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. In order to minimize its exposure to all five of these risks, the Company has a policy of 
complying with the investment guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Virginia for public funds. 

At June 30, 2021, the carrying value of the Company's deposits with banks and LGIP was $33,723,565. All 
deposits of the Company are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized 
in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”) Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the 
Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the 
amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. 
Financial institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that 
choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly, 
all deposits are considered fully collateralized. 

The carrying value of the Company's cash equivalents consists of the following at June 30, 2021: 

  Virginia Local Government Investment Pool   $ 27,553,556 
  Bank deposits (checking accounts)    5,890,987 
  Petty cash funds    118,336 

  Total cash equivalents    33,562,879 

  Restricted for Future Eligible Capital Projects as Required by  
    FTA - represents the federal interest in the sale proceeds of  
   the former maintenance and administrative facility (Note 5)    (2,719,786) 

  Board designated (Note 8)    (5,772,966) 

  Unrestricted and undesignated   $ 25,070,127 

 Grants Receivable 

Federal, state and local grants receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2021: 

  Department of Transportation - Federal Transit Administration   $ 6,655,492 
  Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation    322,127 

   Total grants receivable   $ 6,977,619 
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 Capital Assets 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, upon completion of the new maintenance and administrative facility, 
the Company recorded an asset impairment loss in the amount of $1,100,000, which represented the 
remaining book value of the old maintenance and administrative facility. During the subsequent years, the 
asset impairment loss increased $1,002,509 and totaled $2,102,509 at June 30, 2015. During the year ended 
June 30, 2016, upon sale of the old maintenance and administrative facility, the Company removed the book 
value of the old maintenance and administrative facility and removed the impairment loss reserve in the 
amount of $2,102,509. In connection with the sale, in accordance with FTA regulations, $2,719,786 of the 
sale proceeds represents the federal interest in the proceeds and is restricted for future eligible capital projects. 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows: 

  Balance at      Transfers   Balance at 
  June 30,      and   June 30, 
  2020   Additions   Disposals   2021  

Capital assets not subject to depreciation: 
  Land $ 2,644,056 $ - $ - $ 2,644,056 
  Construction in progress  194,624  178,019  -  372,643 
 Total capital assets not subject  
  to depreciation  2,838,680  178,019  -  3,016,699 
 Capital assets subject to depreciation: 
  Buildings  53,505,971  -  -  53,505,971 
  Buses, vans, vehicles  75,626,923  495,818  (4,098,665)  72,024,076 
  Bus stop and parking facilities  4,198,080  226,971  -  4,425,051 
  Shop and garage equipment  821,438  164,616  -  986,054 
  Office furniture and equipment  8,841,417  -  -  8,841,417 
  Software  2,033,747  96,373  -  2,130,120 
  Bus communications and other  
   equipment  8,465,591  400,309  -  8,865,900 
 Total capital assets subject  
  to depreciation 153,493,167   1,384,087  (4,098,665)  150,778,589 

 Accumulated depreciation: 
  Buildings  (19,296,705)  (1,761,231)  -  (21,057,936) 
  Buses, vans, vehicles  (42,526,709)  (6,288,235)  3,735,520  (45,079,424) 
  Bus stop and parking facilities  (2,714,826)  (364,685)  -  (3,079,511) 
  Shop and garage equipment  (676,087)  (35,617)  -  (711,704) 
  Office furniture and equipment  (8,423,142)  (140,842)  -  (8,563,984) 
  Software  (1,026,173)  (413,633)  -  (1,439,806) 
  Bus communication and other 
   equipment  (4,412,709)  (906,492)  -  (5,319,201) 

 Total accumulated depreciation  (79,076,351)  (9,910,735)  3,735,520  (85,251,566) 
 Total capital assets subject to 
  depreciation, net  74,416,816  (8,526,648)  (363,145)  65,527,023 

 Total capital assets, net $ 77,255,496 $ (8,348,629) $ (363,145) $ 68,543,722 
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Retirement Plans 

The operating company, Old Dominion Transit Management Company, has four retirement plans covering 
substantially all employees. One plan, an Internal Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) deferred 
compensation plan, which is noncontributory and covers qualified salaried employees, is funded as accrued. 
The second and third plans, started during 2002, are contributory Internal Revenue Code Section 457(b) 
deferred compensation plans available to certain eligible employees. The fourth plan is described in the 
succeeding paragraphs. The assets of the plans are required to be held in trust. Based on the plans' 
governmental status, the Company's obligation under the plans is limited to its contributions. The aggregate 
contributions for these plans were $2,471,301 during the year ended June 30, 2021, and are included in 
employee benefits and payroll taxes on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

Plan description 

The fourth plan mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and 
Retirement Allowance Plan ("the Plan”), is a single-employer defined benefit plan and is maintained pursuant 
to agreements between Old Dominion Transit Management Company and Local 1220 of the Amalgamated 
Transit Union. The Plan is administered by a committee of four persons, two appointed by the Company and 
two by the Local 1220. The Plan covers substantially all of the employees covered under the collective 
bargaining agreement between Old Dominion Transit Management Company and Local 1220 who have 
completed 60 days of service, and also includes certain employees who are not members of Local 1220. 
Effective August 1, 2002, the Plan will not cover any person who is not covered by the collective bargaining 
unit represented by Local 1220 and is (1) hired on and after August 1, 2002 or (2) a member of the Plan as 
of September 30, 2002, who, on or before October 31, 2002, irrevocably waived further membership in the 
Plan after September 30, 2002. Participants are eligible for retirement after either (a) attaining age 55 and 
completing a sufficient period of continuous service with the Company so that the total of their age and their 
length of service is 85 or more or (b) attaining age 62 and completing 5 years of continuous service. At 
January 1, 2020, there were 332 current active members in the Plan. At January 1, 2020, 211 retirees and 
beneficiaries were receiving benefits from the Plan. Any participant with at least five years of continuous 
service who terminated employment may elect to either (a) be paid their accumulated contributions with 
interest or (b) leave their contributions in the fund and become fully vested in the benefits they had accrued 
to the date of termination. 

Benefit formula 

A formula is used to determine monthly benefits upon retirement. The retirement benefit formula is computed 
as 1.5% of the participant’s highest four-year average monthly compensation multiplied by the number of 
years of the participant’s continuous service, subject to a monthly minimum benefit of $222 for participants 
in the Plan as of October 1, 2000. Each retirement and disability allowance being paid may be adjusted to 
reflect increases in the consumer price index that have occurred during the preceding year, subject to a 
maximum increase of 4% per year. 

Status of the Plan as a governmental plan 

By letter dated April 18, 1978, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation determined that the Plan was a 
governmental plan under Title IV of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). By 
ruling dated May 29, 1979, the Internal Revenue Service determined that the Plan was a governmental plan 
within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code. By letter dated January 23, 1981, the 
Department of Labor issued an advisory opinion that the Plan was a governmental plan within the meaning 
of Section 3(32) of ERISA. A governmental plan is not subject to most of the provisions of ERISA. 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued)

Publicly available report

The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplemental information for the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and Retirement Allowance
Plan. The financial report may be obtained through management of the Company. The Plan's fiduciary net
position disclosed herein has been determined on the same basis as that used by the Plan.

The Plan's separate financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and
employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee services are performed.
Retirement and termination benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the Plan. If available, quoted market prices are used to value investments. Securities traded on a
national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at existing exchange rates. Bonds
with no quoted market value are generally valued by comparison with comparable securities with similar
yields and ratings. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value.
Appreciation and depreciation on assets held for investment during the year are based on the fair value at the
end of the Plan year as compared to the fair value at the beginning of the Plan year for investments acquired
in a previous Plan year. For investments acquired during the year, appreciation and depreciation are calculated
by determining the difference between fair value at the end of the Plan year and the cost basis of the
investments. Gain or loss on investments disposed of (realized) during the year is calculated by comparing
the sales proceeds with the cost basis for all investment disposals. Interest income is recorded on the accrual
basis.

Funding policy

The cost of providing retirement and disability benefits under the Plan is shared between the Company and
the employee. The collective bargaining process between the Company and the Local 1220 determines the
amount of contribution that the employee must contribute for plan benefits. The portion of such aggregate
contributions to be contributed by the Company for participants who are not members of the bargaining unit
represented by Local 1220, is determined by the Company. In no event, however, may the monthly
contribution made by any member be less than $25. Contribution rates are shown below:

Bargained Non-Bargained 
Effective Date Employee Employer Employee Employer 

October 1, 2017 8.0% 10.0% 4.0% 13.0% 
April 1, 2018 8.0% 10.0% 4.0% 14.0% 
July 1, 2018 8.0% 11.5% 4.0% 14.0% 
October 1, 2018 8.0% 11.5% 4.0% 14.0% 
October 1, 2019 8.0% 12.0% 4.0% 14.0% 
February 16, 2021 9.0% 13.0% 4.0% 14.0% 

Contributions are vested after five years of continuous service with the Company (ten years prior to 
October 1,   2000, and fifteen years prior to October 1, 1997). 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial valuation 

In the latest actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2020, the consulting actuaries, Milliman, Inc., reported a 
total pension liability of $119,309,604. This accrued liability less the value of the trust fund of $38,857,864 
at December 31, 2020, results in a net pension liability of $80,451,740. The actuarial value of assets as a 
percentage of the actuarial pension liability (funded ratio) was 32.6% at December 31, 2020. The 2020 annual 
covered payroll was $18,616,042. The ratio of the net pension liability to annual covered payroll was 432.22% 
for 2020. 

No Plan provisions have changed since the last actuarial valuation. 

According to the actuaries, future contributions to be made by or on behalf of present members at current 
rates will not be sufficient to fund their benefits without any subsidization from future entrants, provided that 
future experience parallels that anticipated under the current actuarial assumptions. Management of the Plan 
intends to continue the funding policy as presented. However, management of the Plan intends to review the 
funding status of the Plan, in consultation with the actuaries, to ensure the sufficiency of Plan assets to satisfy 
all future obligations of the Plan. 

Changes in net pension liability 

     Plan 
  Total    Fiduciary   Net Pension 
  Liability  Net Position   Liability 

  (a)   (b)   (a) - (b)  

  Balances at December 31, 2019 $ 108,512,066 $ 36,520,348 $ 71,991,718 
  Changes for the year: 
   Service cost  3,762,068  -  3,762,068 
   Interest  3,431,709  -  3,431,709 
   Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses  3,513,631  -  3,513,631 
   Effects of assumptions changes or inputs  5,400,805  -  5,400,805 
   Contributions, employer  -  2,483,999  (2,483,999) 
   Contributions, employee   -  1,518,154  (1,518,154) 
   Net investment income  -  3,854,943  (3,854,943) 
   Benefit payments, including refunds of employee  
    contributions  (5,310,675)  (5,310,675)  - 
   Administrative expense  -  (208,905)  208,905 

  Net changes  10,797,538  2,337,516  8,460,022 

  Balances at December 31, 2020 $ 119,309,604 $ 38,857,864 $ 80,451,740 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial assumptions  

The significant assumptions and other inputs used to measure the total pension liability are as follows: 

  Discount Rate  2.76% 
  Long term expected rate of return, net of investment expense  6.50% 
  Bond buyer general obligation 20-bond municipal bond index  2.12% 

The Plan's fiduciary net position was not projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total 
pension liability is equal to the single equivalent rate that results in the same actuarial present value as the 
long-term expected rate of return applied to benefit payments, to the extent that the Plan's fiduciary net 
position is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments, and the municipal bond rate applied 
to benefit payments, to the extent that the Plan's fiduciary net position is not projected to be sufficient. 

Other key actuarial assumptions: 

 Valuation date January 1, 2020 
 Measurement date December 31, 2020 
 Inflation 3.00% 

  Salary increases including inflation 12% per year for participants with less than four years of service 
and service and 4.5% per year for participants with at least four 
years of service 

  Active and healthy inactive mortality Rates from the separate Pub-2010 General Mortality tables for 
employees, retirees, survivors, and disabled participants 
generationally projected using Projection Scale MP-2019. 

  Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 

  Cost of living adjustments None 

  Disabled mortality  Pub-2010 General Mortality tables for disabled participants 
generationally projected using Projection Scale MP-2019 

  Termination rate 30% at less than 1 year of service 
    20% between 1 and 2 years of service 
    15% between 2 and 4 years of service 
    4% at 4 year or service or greater 

 Retirement rate 10% at age 55 
   5% at ages 56 to 59 
   10% at ages 60 and 61 
   70% at age 62 
   40% at age 63 
   20% at age 64 
   100% at age 65 

 

120



GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

 
 

(Continued) 
25 

6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Depletion date projection 

In order to determine if the Plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit 
payments, the actuaries prepared a depletion date projection using the following techniques and assumptions: 

• Current active members contribute the required employee contribution amounts. 

• The Company contributes 12% of compensation for bargained employees and 13% of compensation 
for non-bargained employees. 

• Benefit payments are projected based on the actuarial assumption and the current plan provisions. 
• Members are assumed to receive pay increases, terminate, retire, become disabled, die, and so forth 

according to the actuarial assumptions used for the January 1, 2020, valuation. 

• Terminating and retiring members will not be replaced with new employees. 

• Current administrative expenses are assumed to increase by 3.00% per year. 

• All cash flows are assumed to occur on average halfway through the year. 

• The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.50%. 

• The tax-exempt, high quality general obligation municipal bond index rate is 2.12%. 

• The funding policy used to determine actuarially determined contributions does not change. 

• The actuarial assumptions do not change. 

• The plan provisions do not change except if any material future changes have been agreed upon as of 
the measurement date. 

• The depletion date is 2036. 

Long-term expected rate of return 

The best estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return was determined by the actuaries by adding 
expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The 
capital market assumptions are per Milliman's investment consulting practice as of December 31, 2020. 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued)

Long-term expected rate of return (Continued)

Long-Term Long-Term 
Expected Expected 
Arithmetic Geometric 
Real Rate Real Rate 

Asset Class Index Allocation of Return of Return 

US Cash B of A Merrill Lynch 3 month T-bills 0.09% -0.49% -0.47%
US Core Fixed Income Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate 22.18% 0.83% 0.76%
US Short Bonds Bloomberg Barclays 1-3 Yr Govt/Credit 2.65% 0.45% 0.43%
US Government Bonds Bloomberg Barclays Govt 2.79% 0.33% 0.23%
US Mortgages Bloomberg Barclays MBS 2.13% 0.87% 0.82%
US Municipal Bonds Bloomberg Barclays Muni 0.06% 0.77% 0.69%
Non-US Bonds JP Morgan GBI Global xUS 0.37% 0.00% -0.40%
US Equity Market Russell 3000 68.66% 4.13% 2.84%
Non-US Equity MSCI ACWI xUS NR 0.55% 5.82% 4.21%
Global REITS FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed  0.52% 5.64% 3.86%

Assumed Inflation-Mean 2.20% 2.20%

Assumed Inflation-Standard Deviation 1.65% 1.65%

Portfolio Real Mean Return  3.12% 2.48%

Portfolio Nominal Mean Return 5.33% 4.73%

Portfolio Standard Deviation  11.48%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 6.50%

The long-term expected rate of return of 6.50% was assumed for years one to twenty-eight of the projection 
period while the municipal bond rate of 2.12% was assumed for years twenty-nine and thereafter. This 
resulted in a blended discount rate of 2.76% for 2020. 

Sensitivity analysis 

According to the actuaries, the following presents the net pension liability of the Company, calculated using 
the discount rate of 2.76%, as well as what the Company’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.76%) or 1 percentage point higher (3.76%) than the 
current rate. 

1%  Current  1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 

1.76% 2.76% 3.76% 

Total pension liability $ 136,044,885 $ 119,309,604 $ 105,548,328 
Fiduciary net position  38,857,864  38,857,864  38,857,864 

Net pension liability $ 97,187,021 $ 80,451,740 $ 66,690,464 

122



GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

 
 

(Continued) 
27 

6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Pension expense and deferred inflows and outflows  

For the year ending June 30, 2021, the Company recognized pension expense of $8,972,285. 

The deferred inflows and outflows of resources as of December 31, 2020, are as follows: 

  Deferred   Deferred 
  Outflows of   Inflows of 
  Resources   Resources  

  Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2,893,686 $ 1,593,334 
  Changes of assumptions  22,533,874  1,943,376 
  Pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date  1,297,258  - 
  Net difference between projected and actual earnings  -  2,836,806 

    $ 26,724,818 $ 6,373,516 

$1,297,258 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Company’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension 
Liability in the fiscal year ending June 31, 2021. Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

 Year Ending 
  December 31  

   2021 $ 6,683,653 
   2022  7,134,667 
   2023  4,551,164 
   2024  684,560 

Pension plan data 

Information about the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and Retirement Allowance Plan is also 
available in the separately issued 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (AFR). A copy of the 
2020 AFR may be requested from the plan’s Chief Financial Officer at 301 East Belt Boulevard, Richmond, 
VA 23224. 

 Accrued Uninsured Accident Claims 

Present accident claims insurance coverage provides $2,000,000 (with a $325,000 self-insurance retention) 
per accident. Additional liability insurance is purchased through multiple insurance carriers for up to 
$10,000,000 per accident. At June 30, 2020, the Company was liable for any settlement in excess of 
$10,000,000. Subsequent to year end, the Company joined the Virginia Transit Liability Pool. Under the pool, 
the Company has $20,000,000 liability and excess coverage (with a $325,000 self-insurance retention). 
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7. Accrued Uninsured Accident Claims (Continued)

The following schedule reflects the activity in accrued uninsured accident claims during the year ended
June 30, 2021:

Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 385,675 
Provision 290,079 
Claims paid (325,104) 

Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 350,650 
Provision 56,690 
Claims paid (234,865) 

Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 172,475 

The Company records the provisions for uninsured accident claims based upon management's estimate of the 
total liability for each claim. Because of the inherent uncertainties in estimating accident claims, it is at least 
reasonably possible that the estimates used will change in the near term. 

Board Designated Reserves 

The Board of Directors of the Company has designated cash reserves of $5,772,966 at June 30, 2021 for a 
contingency fund. 

Materials and Supplies Agreements 

The Company obtains tires and tubes for its buses through a three-year agreement with Michelin North 
America, Inc. (“Michelin”) dated June 1, 2018. The agreement provided for two one-year option terms. In 
fiscal year 2021, the Company executed the first one year option to extend the agreement until May 31, 2022. 
Fees are based on a monthly fixed cost and the mileage driven by each bus. Cost incurred in connection with 
tires and tubes were $441,685 for the year ended June 30, 2021, and are included in materials and supplies 
on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

Vanpool Program 

The Company furnishes commuter vanpool services through various agreements, all of which are on a month 
to month basis. The cost of such services to the Company is based on the number of passenger vans provided. 
Cost incurred in connection with commuter vanpool service for the year ended June 30, 2021, were $210,725 
which are included in fees and services expense on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position. 
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Union Contract 

The Company entered into an updated agreement with the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local Union 1220 
(the “Union”), on October 1, 2020, in connection with the Company's transit operators and mechanics. This 
agreement is effective from October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2023. 

Purchased Transportation Services 

The Company furnishes specialized transportation services (CARE and CVAN services) for disabled persons 
through an agreement with First Transit dated December 1, 2017, which expired November 30, 2020, with 
an option to renew for one additional year. The Company has exercised the one year renewal option. The cost 
of such services to the Company is based on a fixed cost per revenue hour. Costs incurred in connection with 
disabled person’s specialized transportation were $4,769,143 for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

The Company provides for short-term post-employment benefit options for health care, vision, and dental 
insurance for terminated employees and dependents solely through the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation 
Act of 1985 (COBRA). The Company’s Collective Bargaining Unit Agreement and Administrative 
Employee's Handbook do not provide for long-term retiree medical, vision and dental benefits following 
retirement from active employment. 

If a separated employee opts for continuation of healthcare, vision, or dental coverage under COBRA, the 
separated employee pays 100% of the premium for any continued medical, vision or dental coverage. As of 
June 30, 2021, the number of separated employees who have opted for continuation of coverage is as follows: 

 Number of  
 Former 
 Employees at 

Coverage Type  June 30, 2021 

Health Care - EE Only 3 
Vision - EE Only 4 
Dental - EE Only 46 
Dental - EE + Spouse 6 

All of the benefits provided to separated employees who opted for COBRA coverage eligibility will end prior 
to June 30, 2022. As such, at June 30, 2021, there was no liability estimated based upon the implicit rate 
subsidy concept. 
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 Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company, from time to time, is a defendant in civil actions. The Company intends to vigorously defend 
the claims asserted against it by all claimants. The ultimate resolution of these matters is not ascertainable at 
this time. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements related to these matters. 

 Leases 

On August 8, 2011, the Company entered into a lease agreement on behalf of RideFinders for office facilities 
in The Ironfronts Building. The lease was renewed on February 19, 2019, and extends through June 30, 2029. 
Total rent to be paid during the initial one hundred twenty five month lease period is $711,780, or $5,694 per 
month on a straight-line basis. Lease expense associated with this lease was $68,331 for 2021, and is included 
in fees and service expense on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

The Company has recorded a deferred rent liability of $31,165 at June 30, 2021, which represents the 
difference between the rent expense recorded on a straight-line basis and actual cash payments made to the 
lessor and is included in other accrued expenses on the statement of net position. 

Future minimum rent payments under this lease are as follows: 

 Year Ending 
  June 30,  

   2022 $ 61,274 
   2023  68,670 
   2024  70,533 
   2025  72,471 
   2026  74,445 
   2027-2029  230,418 

    $ 577,811 

 Ridefinders 

The accompanying financial statements include the amounts of Greater Richmond Transit Co. and its blended 
component unit (Ridefinders). Effective July 1, 1998, the Board of Directors of the Company became the 
governing board of Ridefinders. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. 
Ridefinders was established to foster community participation in the Richmond area in ridesharing activities. 
Ridefinders issues separately audited financial statements. Copies of Ridefinders audit reports may be 
obtained from the Company's finance department. The financial statements of Ridefinders are presented as a 
blended entity in the accompanying financial statements. 
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16. Ridefinders (Continued)

The condensed combining statement of net position of Ridefinders and GRTC at June 30, 2021, is as follows:

 Ridefinders GRTC Total 

Other assets $ 313,731 $ 43,186,012 $ 43,499,743 
Capital assets 1,488  68,542,234  68,543,722 

Total assets 315,219 111,728,246 112,043,465 

Deferred outflows of resources - 26,724,818 26,724,818 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 315,219 $ 138,453,064 $ 138,768,283 

Current liabilities $ 77,870 $ 8,971,121 $ 9,048,991 
Long-term liabilities - 80,451,740  80,451,740 

Total liabilities 77,870 89,422,861 89,500,731 

Deferred inflows of resources - 22,699,402 22,699,402 

Net investment in capital assets 1,488 68,542,234 68,543,722 
Restricted - 2,719,786 2,719,786 
Unrestricted 235,861 (44,931,219) (44,695,358) 

Net position 237,349 26,330,801 26,568,150 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 

and net position $ 315,219 $ 138,453,064 $ 138,768,283 

The condensed combining statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position of Ridefinders and 
GRTC for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

 Ridefinders GRTC Total 

Operating revenues $ 12,525 $ 6,973,315 $ 6,985,840 
Operating expenses 601,733  74,586,020  75,187,753 

Operating loss (589,208) (67,612,705) (68,201,913) 
Nonoperating revenues 625,174 51,816,033 52,441,207 

Change in net position 35,966 (15,796,672)  (15,760,706) 
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 201,383 42,127,473 42,328,856 

Net position, end of year $ 237,349 $ 26,330,801 $ 26,568,150 
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16. Ridefinders (Continued)

The condensed combining statement of cash flows of Ridefinders and GRTC for the year ended
June 30, 2021, is as follows:

 Ridefinders GRTC Total 

Net cash provided by (used) operating activities $ 7,072 $ (51,058,974) $ (51,051,902) 
Net cash provided by investing activities - 52,021 52,021 
Net cash provided by capital financing activities - 940,632 940,632 
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - 67,236,301 67,236,301 

Increase in cash 7,072 17,169,980 17,177,052 
Cash, beginning of year 200,335 16,185,492 16,385,827 

Cash, end of year $ 207,407 $ 33,355,472 $ 33,562,879 

Ridefinders has recorded various transactions with the Company for 2021, which are summarized as follows: 

Payroll and related expenses $ 483,425 
Accounts receivable $ 120,602 
Accounts payable $ 37,762 

Effective January 1, 1998, all Ridefinders' employees became GRTC employees. Ridefinders and GRTC 
entered into an employee lease agreement whereby Ridefinders leases its employees from GRTC. 

COVID-19 Uncertainty 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because 
of a new strain of coronavirus (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community as 
the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 
outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.  

The Company’s operations are heavily dependent on charging fares from passengers. Additionally, access to 
grants and contracts from federal and state governments may decrease or may not be available depending on 
appropriations. The COVID-19 outbreak will have a continued material adverse impact on economic and 
market conditions, triggering a period of global economic slowdown. This situation has caused fare collection 
to be suspended during fiscal year 2021 and will continue into fiscal year 2022. As such, our financial 
condition and liquidity could be negatively impacted for the fiscal years 2022 and beyond. 
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17. COVID-19 Uncertainty (Continued)

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is
uncertain as to the full magnitude the pandemic will have on the Company’s financial condition, liquidity,
and future results of operations. Management is actively monitoring the impact of the global situation on its
financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the
COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the Company is not able to estimate the
effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for fiscal
year 2022.

Restatement 

The net position at the beginning of fiscal year 2021 was restated to reflect adjustments related to the 
Company’s OPEB obligation and compensated absences accrual. The Company made a correction of an error 
with regards to the eligibility criteria previously utilized in the calculation of its OPEB liability for post-
employment benefit options for health care, vision, and dental insurance to reflect benefits provided solely 
through the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) for separating employees and their 
dependents, as noted in Note 13. As a result, there was a correction of an error related to the June 30, 2020, 
OPEB balances. 

The Company also awards active employees annual leave at the beginning of each calendar year. Annual 
leave awards must be utilized in the same year that leave is awarded and upon termination of employment, 
the employee will be paid on a prorated basis the amount of any earned but not used annual leave during that 
calendar year. A liability related to the unused annual leave as of June 30, 2020, was inadvertently not 
reflected in the 2020 financial statements. 

Comparative prior year information, to the extent presented, has not been restated because the necessary 
information is not available. The Company’s 2020 beginning balances related to OPEB and compensated 
absences have been adjusted as follows: 

Previously As 
Reported Restated 
June 30, June 30, 

2020  Restatement  2020 

OPEB deferred outflows of resources $ 1,338,757 $ (1,338,757) $ - 

Compensated absences - 753,677 753,677 

OPEB liability 3,719,520 3,704,099 (15,421) 

OPEB deferred inflows of resources 19,450 19,450 - 

Net position, unrestricted (39,277,541) 1,631,115  (37,646,426) 

Net position 40,697,741 1,631,115  42,328,856 
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 Unearned and Deferred Revenue, Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) 

During 2021, the Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) was created. The Authority is 
responsible for administering transportation funding generated from the imposition of an additional regional 
sales and use tax and taxes on the sales of gasoline and diesel. The new funding is to be used for 
transportation-related purposes for the various localities located in Central Virginia. As a result, the Company 
received a total of $16,325,886 that is to be used for capital and operational needs for fiscal year 2022. The 
funds could not be utilized until CVTA approved the Company’s Regional Public Transit Plan for fiscal year 
2022. The Company’s plan was approved by CVTA on June 25, 2021. At June 30, 2021, the funds had not 
been used for capital or operating expenditures, but, it is anticipated that they will be used by the Company 
during fiscal year 2022. As such, this funding is reflected as unearned and deferred revenue on the statement 
of net position. 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost 3,762,068$     3,409,609$     1,878,738$    2,043,015$    1,948,697$    1,450,042$    2,853,856$     
Interest 3,431,709       3,370,599       4,027,357      3,830,331      3,796,263      4,057,519      4,445,277       
Differences between expected and actual experience 5,400,805       31,264,920     (5,830,131)     2,803,368      7,988,685      (13,996,709)   31,902,783     
Effect of plan changes -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     (24,336,327)   -                     
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 3,513,631       (2,818,974)     449,165         -                     -                     -                     -                     
Benefit payments, including refunds (5,310,675)     (5,051,835)     (5,321,234)     (5,216,184)     (5,056,520)     (4,952,698)     (4,516,684)     

Net change in total pension liability: 10,797,538     30,174,319     (4,796,105)     3,460,530      8,677,125      (37,778,173)   34,685,232     

Total pension liability, beginning 108,512,066   78,337,747     83,133,852    79,673,322    70,996,197    108,774,370  74,089,138     

Total pension liability, ending (a)  119,309,604$ 108,512,066$ 78,337,747$  83,133,852$  79,673,322$  70,996,197$  108,774,370$ 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions, employer 2,483,999$     2,171,361$     1,822,920$    1,813,544$    1,696,418$    1,632,672$    1,552,764$     
Contributions, employee 1,518,153       1,381,914       1,239,610      1,310,020      1,216,483      1,164,749      1,064,699       
Net investment income 3,758,328       6,249,173       (1,182,755)     4,925,115      1,576,447      (796,759)        1,525,695       
Benefit payments (5,310,675)     (4,975,690)     (5,321,234)     (5,216,184)     (5,056,520)     (4,952,698)     (4,516,684)     
Administrative expenses (128,209)        (107,011)        (188,730)        (169,033)        (136,604)        (66,427)          (81,776)          
Other changes 15,920            2,003              -                     -                     (268,149)        -                     -                     

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,337,516       4,721,750       (3,630,189)     2,663,462      (971,925)        (3,018,463)     (455,302)        

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 36,520,348     31,798,598     35,428,787    32,765,325    33,737,250    36,755,713    37,211,015     

Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b)  38,857,864$   36,520,348$   31,798,598$  35,428,787$  32,765,325$  33,737,250$  36,755,713$   

Net pension liability, ending (a) - (b)   80,451,740$   71,991,718$   46,539,149$  47,705,065$  46,907,997$  37,258,947$  72,018,657$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 32.6% 33.7% 40.6% 42.6% 41.1% 47.5% 33.8%

Covered payroll* 18,616,042$   16,448,830$   16,367,124$  16,514,954$  16,514,954$  15,420,198$  15,018,061$   

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 432.2% 437.7% 284.3% 288.9% 284.0% 241.6% 479.5%

*Covered payroll represents the total pensionable payroll for employees covered under the pension plan, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 82.

Note:  Information in this schedule is presented for the year in which information is available. Information will be added each year until a full 10-year trend is presented.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 3,450,831$   3,589,495$   2,433,113$   2,542,550$   2,347,897$   3,742,841$   3,475,196$   
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contribution 2,483,999     2,171,361     1,822,920     1,813,544     1,696,418     1,632,672     1,552,764     

Contribution deficiency 966,832$      1,418,134$   610,193$      729,006$      651,479$      2,110,169$   1,922,432$   

Employer's covered payroll 18,616,042$ 16,448,830$ 16,367,124$ 16,514,954$ 16,514,954$ 15,420,198$ 15,018,061$ 

Contributions as a percentage covered payroll 13.34% 13.20% 11.14% 10.98% 10.27% 10.59% 10.34%

Note:  Information in this schedule is presented for the year in which information is available. 
Information will be added each year until a full 10-year trend is presented.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION
Year Ended June 30, 2021

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the funding valuation as of December 31, 2020:
Valuation date
Measurement date
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 6.50%
20 year - bond GO index 2.12%
Interest on employee contributions 3.00%
Cost of living adjustments None
Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 

Termination Rates varying by service as in the table below:

Years of Service Probability
Less than 1 30.00%
Between 1 and 2 20.00%
Between 2 and 4 15.00%
4 or more 4.00%

Incidence of disability Rates are from the 1985 Pension Unisex Disability Table, Class 2.  
Sample rates for active employees varying by age are shown below:

Age Probability
25 0.094%
35 0.219%
45 0.511%
55 1.498%
65 2.718%

Active and Healthy Inactive Mortality Pub-2010 General Mortality with separate tables for employees,
retirees, and survivors generationally projected using Projection
Scale MP-2019.

Disabled Mortality Pub-2010 General Mortality tables for disabled participants
generationally projected using Projection Scale MP-2019.

Retirement Rates for active employees varying by age as in the table below:

Age Probability
55 10.000%
56-59 5.000%
60-61 10.000%
62 70.000%
63 40.000%
64 20.000%
65 100.000%

All future deferred vested participants are assumed to retire at age 62.
The Company provides the assumed dates of retirement for current 
deferred vested participants.

Form of payment All participants are assumed to elect straight life annuities.

Postretirement Returns of Contributions Refunds of accumulated contributions are approximated with a 
five-year certain annuity.

January 1, 2020
December 31, 2020

12% per year for participants with less than four years of service 
and 4.5% per year for participants with at least four years of service.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Greater Richmond 
Transit Company (the “Company”),  as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a or a combination of deficiencies, material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weakness may exist 
that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Company and its blend component unit's 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
October 28, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 
Richmond, Virginia 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Greater Richmond Transit Company's (the “Company”) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the Company's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The 
Company’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Company's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Company's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Company’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Greater Richmond Transit Company complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Greater Richmond Transit Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Company's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Company's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weakness. However, 
material weakness may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 28, 2021 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
June 30, 2021

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient State CFDA Grant Total Awards
Agency/Grant Program Number Number Expended

DIRECT AWARDS
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA):
Federal Transit Cluster:

Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 VA90-X398 32,068$            
20.507 VA90-X523 / 

VA2016-021 5,632                
20.507 VA90-X535 /

VA2017-022 226,711            
20.507 VA2020-009 4,132,102         
20.507 VA95-X090 75,855              
20.507 VA2021-040 8,895                

COVID-19 Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 VA2020-023 25,883,499       

Total Federal Transit - Formula Grants 30,364,762       

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 VA34-X0002 26,000              

Total Federal Transit Cluster 30,390,762$     
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on an accrual basis of 
accounting consistent with the basis of accounting used by Greater Richmond Transit Company. The schedule 
includes all known federal funds expended by the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information 
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used 
in the presentation of the basic financial statements. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers 
are presented where available. The Company has elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as 
allowed in the Uniform Guidance. 

Subrecipient Payments 

None of the expenditures reported on the Schedule were passed through to subrecipients. 
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A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of financial statements were reported in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on the Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award program were reported in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award program expresses an unmodified
opinion.

6. The audit disclosed no audit findings related to the major program.

7. The major program was:

Name of Program 

Assistance 
Listing 
Number 

  Federal Transit Cluster: 
 

  Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 
 Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs is $750,000.

9. The Company was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

None noted.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None noted.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES  

To the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have performed the procedure enumerated below on the National Transit Database Financial Data of 
the Greater Richmond Transit Company (the “Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2021.  The 
Company’s management is responsible for the National Transit Database Financial Data. 

The Company has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedure performed is appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of testing that the accounting system from which the National Transit Database 
Financial Data was derived is other than the accounting system prescribed by the Uniform System of 
Accounts but uses the accrual basis of accounting and is directly translated, using a clear trail, to the 
accounting treatment and categories specified by the Uniform System of Accounts.  Additionally, the 
Federal Transit Administration has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for their purposes.  This report may not be suitable for any other purpose.  The procedure 
performed may not address all items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all 
users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedure performed 
is appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedure and associated findings are as follows:  

Procedure: Reconcile financial data in the following applicable forms reported in the National Transit 
Database Financial Data report to the audited trial balance of the Company.    

Applicable Forms: 

1. Sources of Funds - Funds Expended & Funds Earned (Form F-10)

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

2. Uses of Capital (Form F-20)

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

3. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - Overall

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

4. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - DR PT

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.
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5. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - MB DO

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

6. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - RB DO

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

7. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - MB PT

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

8. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - VP PT

Findings:

 The Purchased Transportation information in this form does not come from the trial
balance of the Company; it comes from the Company’s purchased vanpool services
transportation vendor. Accountant was able to agree the information on this form to the
spreadsheet prepared by the vendor that was provided by management.

 Otherwise, accountant was able to reconcile the financial data to the audited trial balance
of the Company without exception.

9. Operating Expenses Summary (Form F-40)

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

10. Financial Statement (Form F-60)

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.

11. Federal Funding Allocation Statistics (Forms FFA-10)

Findings:  Accountant agreed the financial data to the supporting Form F-30s without exception.
See items 3 - 8 above for results of agreeing the financial data on the individual forms to the
audited trial balance.

We were engaged by the Company to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, 
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the National 
Transit Database Financial Data. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Greater Richmond Transit Company and 
the Federal Transit Administration and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
those specified parties.  

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 28, 2021 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: GRTC Transit History Museum – Update with University of Richmond 

BACKGROUND: 

In partnership with the University of Richmond, GRTC’s Transit History Museum 
received a new installation featuring new GRTC Family faces and stories gathered this 
Fall through oral “History Harvests.” The private opening of the museum is tomorrow 
evening at GRTC HQ. Because of COVID protocols, we are not yet able to open to the 
public, but this exhibit has an online virtual experience with all the same images and 
narratives that are housed here. This means everyone can access the Transit Museum 
anytime. 

University of Richmond students in the “Public Transportation in the Time of Two 
Pandemics” course gathered oral histories from GRTC employees, and in some cases, 
their family members. Featuring photographs by Tania del Carmen, “Through It All: 
Families Moving Richmond” shines a light on GRTC employees and relatives who keep 
GRTC operational and lead Richmond through unprecedented times. Stories of GRTC 
families reflect resilience, strength, work ethic, and much more. 

CURRENT STATUS: 

The new exhibit is now installed in the hallway on 2R and invited guests will explore the 
museum Wednesday evening. A virtual experience is available at fightforknowledge.org. 

145



GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: GRTC Annual Report FY2021 

BACKGROUND: 

Each year, the Marketing Department prepares the GRTC Annual Report for the public 
and posts on rideGRTC.com. This digital document provides an executive summary of 
company activities and accomplishments during the last fiscal year, with an opportunity 
to click-through for a deeper data review of the Fiscal Year ridership and financials.  
In addition to the digital format, a PDF download document is available, and individual 
pages may serve as quick-reference handouts for stakeholders, media, and the public. 

CURRENT STATUS: 

The GRTC Annual Report FY21 (for July 2020 – June 2021) is posted on 
rideGRTC.com. Please visit http://ridegrtc.com/statistics-reports/annual-reports/ to see 
both past and current reports.  
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Downtown Transfer Center Lease 

BACKGROUND: 

GRTC currently occupies the right of way adjacent to the Public Safety Building on 9th Street 
between Marshall and Leigh Street as their Temporary Transfer Site. This property was recently 
sold by the City of Richmond and is anticipated to be demolished and developed within a couple 
of months. Demo may begin as soon as December 2021. In coordination with the City of 
Richmond, GRTC is planning to relocate the Temporary Transfer Site to the parking lot at 8th 
and Clay.  

The City of Richmond wishes to lease a portion of the parking lot at 8th and Clay to GRTC to be 
used as part of their transit system to load, unload and transfer passengers between transit 
routes. This agreement provides GRTC the ability to construct a Temporary Transfer Center on 
the aforementioned lot, to accommodate several bus transfers and to continue to provide 
citizens with adequate transit services.  

147



11

November 2021 Board Update

Temporary Transfer Center Lease
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• Rent

• TERM

• Termination upon Sale

• Termination upon Construction of
Permanent Transfer Station

• Non-Renewable Lease

Highlights

149



Parking: 

• Adjacent Parking

• Pedestrian Access and Accessibility

Infrastructure: 

• Pavement

• Signage and Advertising

• Bus Bays

• Passenger Infrastructure

• Lighting

Highlights
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Questions?
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Transit Asset Management Plan Update 

BACKGROUND: 

On September 27, 2018, GRTC published its first Transit Asset Management (TAM) plan in 
accordance with FTA’s TAM Plan Final Rule, which requires public transportation providers to 
develop and implement a TAM plan. The Transit Asset Management (TAM) plan describes 
the current state of Asset Management at GRTC and makes recommendations for 
improvements to allow GRTC to provide safe, reliable, and high-quality service to the region. 
An update of this plan is required every 4 years. Detailed condition assessments of GRTC’s 
revenue, non-revenue vehicles, facility, and equipment are required. These condition 
assessments will not only keep GRTC in compliance of FTA TAM Final Rule but will also 
provide GRTC with valuable data regarding assets’ State of Good Repair (SGR) that can be 
used to better prioritize capital projects and funding requests. GRTC is seeking to contract 
professional services to update the Transit Asset Management Plan. 

Project deliverables include, but not limited to: 

o Reusable training documentation on TAM rule and TAM plan
o Assessment of GRTC’s Asset Management Status
o Updated asset inventory spreadsheets and reports with recommendations
o SGR needs identification, prioritization, criteria and results
o Processes and procedures for TAM plan development, maintenance, and improvement
o Updated TAM Plan

HIGHLIGHTS: 

• This will be funded with existing and approved federal, state, and local funds.

• GRTC provided scope and request for proposals from two consultants under the DRPT
General Transit Planning consultant contract.

• GRTC received one proposal back from Kimley Horn. After review of the proposal, Kimley
Horn was determined to be responsive and satisfied the scope with their approach.

• Total expenditure for these services to not exceed: $110,000 which includes a
contingency of $8,885. (46% federal/50% state/4% local).

Grant # Federal (46%) State (50%) Local (4%) 

VA2021-040 30,800 74,800 4,400 
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RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to contract with Kimley 
Horn for professional services not to exceed $110,000 to update the Transit Asset 
Management Plan.  

Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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November 2021 Board Update

Transit Asset Management Plan
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• Requires grantees to develop a TAM Plan.

• Defines State of Good Repair (SGR)

• Establishes performance measures.

• Establishes annual reporting requirements to the National Transit Database (NTD)

• Requires FTA to provide technical assistance.

FTA TAM Final Rule 
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1. Inventory of assets

2. Condition Assessment of inventoried assets

3. Description of a decision support tool

4. Prioritized list of investments

5. TAM and SGR policy

6. Implementation Strategy

7. List of key annual activities

8. Identification of resources

9. Evaluation Plan

TAM Plan Elements 
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• Transit Asset Management Understanding

• FTA TAM Final Rule 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 625 Compliance.

• TAM Implementation Program

• State of Good Repair (SGR) Program Implementation and Projects

TAM Plan Development Objectives
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: GRTC “Now Hiring” Marketing Series – December 2021 – June 2022 

BACKGROUND: 

GRTC continues to aggressively recruit and hire new bus operators and mechanics through a 
variety of tactics, including through local media outlets and digital marketing partners. Combined 
with internal process changes like on-site CDL testing from the DMV, continuously rolling 
training, and new hire sign-on bonuses, GRTC’s marketing efforts have both increased the 
number of applicant visits to rideGRTC.com and delivered 17 new hires directly attributed to 
marketing leads in 2021 (6 operators from TV ads, 8 operators and 1 mechanic from our 
website/digital redirect, and 1 operator and 1 mechanic from social media/Facebook ads). In 
FY22, GRTC scheduled up to $400,000 to be spent as approved by GRTC’s Board of Directors 
on June 15, 2021, using Federal CRRSA relief funding.  Staff had planned to expend these 
funds through periodic media campaigns throughout FY2022. 

With continued staffing shortages, GRTC accelerated media buys to maintain the hiring 
momentum continuously throughout the fall. GRTC will need added funding to sustain these 
combined efforts until reaching necessary levels to deliver reliable service consistently as the 
previously approved funding will be expended by the end of November 2021. 

Therefore, below is the new media buy plan to cover the period of December 2021 – June 2022, 
in not-to-exceed amounts for each media partner. Should GRTC reach or exceed necessary 
staffing levels before June 2022, GRTC’s CEO may direct staff to conclude the media run early. 
The media partners selected have proven reach success for GRTC during ongoing pandemic 
conditions, and staff recommend prudently spending relief dollars with these vendors. 

Total Request for new approval today: $1,150,110 

NBC12: 
Budget $320,000  
Split Minimum split: 60% TV – 40% Digital 
Tactics  
TV campaigns on NBC12 + CW: programs include local news, prime time programming, 
football, and special event programming. 
Display ads, Pre-roll ads, and Splash ads on NBC12.com + News/Weather apps 
Streaming ads on NBC12 OTT platforms (Apple TV, Amazon Fire, Roku) 
Email campaigns to NBC12 database 
Online streaming campaigns on NBC sports website/apps during Olympics + NFL Football 
Targeted display ads, pre-roll ads, and streaming ads 
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CBS6: 
Budget $294,950 
Split Minimum split: 60% TV – 40% Digital 
Tactics 
TV campaigns include local news, NFL Football, CBS Basketball coverage on the weekend, 
CBS6’s broadcast of at least 2 VCU games and the NCAA Basketball Tournament, and prime 
CBS programming.   
175 commercials on CBS 6 Weather Extra at no additional charge 
Digital Resources:   
(15) Targeted Recruitment E Blasts – 100,000 impressions to blue collar families with a
household income less than $75,000.
2.1 million Targeted Ad Messenger impressions to adults aged 21-65, military/veterans/retirees,
and Hispanic audiences.
1.75 million OTT Targeted commercials

WRIC8:  
Budget $254,635 
Split 60% TV – 40% Digital 
Tactics 
TV campaign: 1,004 spots on programming including local news, prime ABC programs, daytime 
ABC programs, NFL and NBA sports, and Showcase Richmond. 
Digital campaign: Pre-roll video (non-skippable) and Social Display ads on WRIC.com, CTV and 
OTT targeted video, pre-roll video (non-skippable) on premium websites and mobile apps, and 
targeted email. 

FOX35: 
Budget $160,525 
Split 100% TV 
Tactics 
TV campaign includes programming on local news, NFL, College Football, College Basketball, 
NASCAR, WWE Smackdown, and prime FOX programs. 

Work4 (Facebook jobs): 
Split 50% of ads for Operators, 50% for Mechanics 
Budget $20,000  
Tactics Facebook ads and postings on the Facebook job board. Leads generated are sent 
directly to GRTC HR for individual contact to potential candidates. 

Cinemedia: NO CHANGE to prior approval – still budgeted at $10,000 to be spent in Spring 
2022. 
Budget $10,000 

Tactics – In lobby video monitor ads and on-movie screen ads before previews. Target 1 or 2 
spots before a few big blockbuster movies at the theaters and in the lobbies. 
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The exact tactics listed above are subject to adjustment throughout the period as company 
needs dictate and target behaviors are refined for maximum exposure and return-on-investment. 
Regardless of campaign adjustments to maximize efficacy, each media partner total spend will 
remain within the not-to-exceed PO amount approved. 

Contingency Reserve: This budget is available for use if additional staffing recruitment needs 
are identified before the end of FY22 and would be applied in similar targeted methods with 
media outlets to increase applicants and maximize reach. 
Budget $100,000 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to execute Purchase Orders not to exceed 
$1,150,110 for the period between December 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 from ARPA 
Federal Relief funds for the purpose of ongoing recruitment efforts. 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Operating Performance 

BACKGROUND: 

Attached are the monthly operating statistics through October 31, 2021. 

CURRENT STATUS: 

Chief of Transit Operations, Tim Barham, will review the operating statistics, KPIs, 
staffing, and COVID-related updates for Fixed Route and Paratransit Services for the 
month of October 2021. 
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Operating Report 
November 16, 2021 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

Table of Contents 
1.0  TRANSPORTATION 

1.1 Fixed Route Performance – Lost Time Rate – Bus Operators 
1.2.1 Fixed Route Performance – Scheduled Trips Operated 
1.2.2 Fixed Route Performance – On-Time Performance 
1.3.1 Customer Service Center – Complaints – Fixed Route 

2.0  HUMAN RESOURCES 
2.1 Employment Comparisons 

3.0  RISK MANAGEMENT 
3.1.1 Fixed Route – Traffic Accident Data 
3.1.2 Fixed Route – Passenger Accident Data 
3.2.1 Specialized Transportation – Traffic Accident Data 
3.2.2 Specialized Transportation – Passenger Accident Data 
3.3.1 Fixed Route – Traffic Accidents per 100,000 Miles 
3.3.2 Fixed Route – Passenger Accidents per 100,000 Mile 

4.0  INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
4.1 Projects 

5.0  CONSTRUCTION AND FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 
5.1 Projects 

6.0  PROCUREMENT 
6.1 Supplier Diversity 

7.0  Marketing 
7.1 Media Buys Updates 
7.2 Marketing Projects 
7.3 Public Relations / Public Outreach / Media Inquiries 

8.0  RIDEFINDERS 
8.1 Ongoing Projects 
8.2 Vanpool Program 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

1.0  TRANSPORTATION 
1.1 Fixed Route Performance – Lost Time Rate – Bus Operators 

1.2.1 Fixed Route Performance – Scheduled Trips Operated 

Comments:  April 2021 – Data not available due to Clever CAD Software Update. 

1.2.2 Fixed Route Performance – On-Time Performance 

Not available. 

Comments:  KPI Goal is 80% or greater. 

1.3.1 Customer Service Center – Complaints – Fixed Route 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

1.41 Specialized Transportation – No Shows 

1.4.2 Specialized Transportation – On-Time Performance 

1.4.3 Specialized Transportation – Complaints Per 10,000 Passenger Trips 

2.0  HUMAN RESOURCES 
2.1 Employment Comparisons 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

3.0  RISK MANAGEMENT 
3.1.1 Fixed Route – Traffic Accident Data 

3.1.2 Fixed Route – Passenger Accident Data 

3.2.1 Specialized Transportation – Traffic Accident Data 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

3.2.2 Specialized Transportation – Passenger Accident Data 

3.3.1 Fixed Route – Traffic Accidents per 100,000 Miles 

3.3.2 Fixed Route – Passenger Accidents per 100,000 Mile 

168



Operating Report – October 2021 

4.0  INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
4.1 Projects 

INFORMATION SYSTEMS PROJECT SUMMARY 
Projects within budget and on schedule Budget Schedule 

100% 90% 

Project: GRTC ERP PROJECT - PHASE 1 

Project Lead: Dexter Hurt Project Sponsor: GRTC 
Description/Status Notes 

Project to conduct a needs assessment of the existing system focusing on the broader perspective to identify gaps throughout the system. Phase 1 of project is to do a 
business process discovery and provide a needs assessment. 
STATUS: RFP submissions complete. Plante Moran and GRTC selection committee nearing the end of selection process. GRTC completed reviewing RFP vendor 
demonstrations on software and implementation. Next step is for the selection committee to evaluate and select a vendor. 

Project Health Check 
Health Budget Schedule Resources Deliverables 

Within Budget On Schedule Adequate On Target 
Budget Tracking 

Budget Start Date Completion Date Baseline Budget Actual Budget % Complete 
December 2020 December 2021 $ 142,740.00 $ - 85% 

Project: CLEVER DISRUPTION MANAGEMENT 

Project Lead: Dexter Hurt Project Sponsor: GRTC 
Description/Status Notes 

Disruption Management is a set of features that allows dispatchers and users the ability address unplanned operational events that require change in Service. These include 
creating detours, bus bridging and/or schedule changes within the CleverCAD Client and CleverWorks. Disruption Management provides GRTC the ability to 
accommodate changes with traceability and synchronization throughout the ITS CAD/AVL system. 
STATUS: Deployment of DM requires upgrade of systems and bus technology to meet basic standards to include Covert Mic, BusTime, Int Screens, GRTC-RT, etc. 
Adjusted project timeline to allow Training Department additional time to train Operators on IVN International Screens. Bus installations planned to begin in January due 
to large number of buses in repair. 

Project Health Check 
Health Budget Schedule Resources Deliverables 

Within Budget Schedule Delayed Escalated Escalated 
Budget Tracking 

Budget Start Date Completion Date Baseline Budget Actual Budget % Complete 
April 2020 February 2022 75% 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

Project: GRTC BUSTRACKER MOBILE APPLICATION ENHANCEMENT 
Project Lead: Jean Lombos Project Sponsor: GRTC IT 

Description/Status Notes 
GRTC BusTracker Mobile Application enhancements and new features development and rollout. 
STATUS: Testing completed successfully. Vendor waiting on public launch date to submit app to Google and Apple App Store. Project awaiting go live of DM project. 

Project Health Check 
Health Budget Schedule Resources Deliverables 

Within Budget On Schedule Adequate On Target 
Budget Tracking 

Budget Start Date Completion Date Baseline Budget Actual Budget % Complete 
June 2020 January 2022 80% 

Project: ALERT DISCUSSION / RIDE TEXT SIGNAGE 
Project Lead: Jean Lombos Project Sponsor: GRTC IT 

Description/Status Notes 
Updated feature in the Mobile App that will allow riders to choose routes, stops and buses. It will provide for riders the ability to see multiple routes on the map 
STATUS: Ride Text Alert is fully functional. GRTC tested and signed off. Project is complete and in Support mode with ALESIG. 

Project Health Check 
Health Budget Schedule Resources Deliverables 

Within Budget On Schedule Adequate On Target 
Budget Tracking 

Budget Start Date Completion Date Baseline Budget Actual Budget % Complete 
January 2021 November 2021 100% 

Project: EMPLOYEE MOBILE APP 
Project Lead: Jean Lombos Project Sponsor: GRTC IT 

Description/Status Notes 
Designed specifically with GRTC employees in mind. It will provide the latest company news/alerts and communication tool between CEO and employees. 
STATUS: Working alongside with ALESIG. Meeting with GRTC HR to gain access from ADP to get API information. API will allow vendor to access information to 
continue application development. 

Project Health Check 
Health Budget Schedule Resources Deliverables 

TBD TBD 
Budget Tracking 

Budget Start Date Completion Date Baseline Budget Actual Budget % Complete 
TBD TBD TBD 
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Operating Report – October 2021 

5.0  CONSTRUCTION AND FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 

5.1 Projects 
Scope | 
Were 
Scope 
Changes 
More 
Than 
Expected

Project Schedule Budget Start 
Date

Completio
n Date Baseline 

Budget 

 Actual 
Budget 

Within 
Anticipated 

Limits Of Staff-
Hours Spent?

Project 
Sponsor Project Lead # Change 

Requests

Employee Parking Lot 
Repairs Active $170,000 05/07/21 08/31/21 $0 $170,000 Yes Facilities Joey Agee

Facility Management Active/Continuous $300,000 07/01/21 06/30/22 $38,607 $261,393 Yes Facilities  Joey Agee 0

Pulse Station 
Maintenance Active/Continuous $145,000 07/01/21 06/30/22 $11,250 $133,750 Facilities Joey Agee 0

Comments:   General facility maintenance and response to facility help desk requests on-going: Completed the powerwashing blitz for BRT and 92 local stops;
completed the front mulch bed renovation project; painting continues in the facility phase 1; issued a purchase order for boiler repairs; been working weekly with 
Procurement on capital projects; continue working with Transportation on the COOP Plan for facilities; completed a deep cleaning and sneeze shield in customer 
service

Comments: GRTC has a crew that works 7 days a week cleaning the 26 pulse stations including trash pickup, disinfecting benchs, lean rails, handrails, cleaning glass 
panels and sweeping.  We complete weekly powerwashing every Wednesday keeping the platforms clean and sanitized.  We have replaced trashcan tops at all 26 
stations. Still waiting on glass repairs at East River Front Eastbound.

 Cost 
Within Anticipated Limits Of Staff-

Hours Spent?Project Status Time

Comments:  Kimley-Horn completed an site walk on October 21st to verify that Finley's Asphalt completed the project per specs provided. Once site walk was 
completed it was determined that lot repairs have been completed per specs and Kimley-Horn signed off on the completion of the project. 

6.0  PROCUREMENT 
6.1 Supplier Diversity 

7.0  MARKETING 
7.1 Media Buys Updates 

• FY22 Recruitment budget ($400,000 Federal relief) approved by Board in June. Current run active until late November. In 2021, there
are 17 hires directly attributed to marketing efforts.

• Recommendations for sustained recruitment marketing will come to the Board in November 2021.
7.2 Marketing Projects 

• Operator/Mechanic Recruitment – HR, Transportation, Maintenance, & Marketing coordinating. Replacement spots planned in
November, with additional series updates in December. New spots should enter rotation by January 2022.

• Coordination with University of Richmond on Transit History Museum update this Fall focused on the theme “GRTC Family.” Invitation-
only opening planned November 17. A virtual museum experience will be available online.

• Coordination with Finance on advertising client billing and records.
• Coordination with Planning and RVA Rapid Transit on signage for the Better Bus Stop Program.
• Homepage website ADA update – expected Fall 2021 (delayed). PO issued to Left+Right.
• Work on the FY21 Annual Report continued in October. Final edits are expected the first week of November.
• Support for Planning at-stop projects (customer notices, progress photos), as well as preliminary plans for the TTP move.

7.3 Public Relations / Public Outreach / Media Inquiries 
• Freedom Constellations bus debut Oct 17.
• Media inquiries about service plan for Dec, Zero Fare, labor shortage and recruitment, and vaccine mandate.
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7.4 Social Media (Stats as of November 3, 2021) 

• Instagram: 1,260 followers. (Up from last month)
• Twitter at 2,306 Followers. (Up from last month)

HIGHLIGHTS: We were up on tweets, impressions, profile visits, and followers. This increase in activity is because of the return of staff
to Radio Room CSR duties, and the Freedom Constellations event.
o Number of Tweets: 165 (up 10% from previous period)
o Number of Profile Visits: 10,400 (up 1% from previous period)
o Number of Mentions: 98 (down 14% from previous period).
o Number of Tweet Impressions: 40,500 (up 20% from previous period).

• Pulse Twitter account has 1,556 Followers, steady. This is account is currently only used for Pulse-specific service alerts. We are not
actively marketing Pulse right now.

• Facebook 3,471 “Likes”. (Up from last month) Detailed stats below.
HIGHLIGHTS:  We were up on all metrics as a result of the paid FB jobs ads running for Operators and Mechanics, as well as from the
Freedom Constellations event.
o Post Reach (last 28 days): 20,578 (up 3% from previous period)
o Post Engagement (last 28 days): 3,823 (up 167% from previous period)
o Page Views (last 28 days): 774 (up 102% from previous period)
o This month photo posts were the most popular for reach (reaching an average of 594 people).
o Responsiveness to customers (i.e. customer queries that we responded to): 90%. Response time: 1 day to respond to a customer.

• Pulse Facebook page has 924 likes, up slightly. This is account is currently only used for Pulse-specific service alerts. We are not
actively marketing Pulse right now.

8.0  RIDEFINDERS 
8.1 Ongoing Projects 

• Working on a future webinar with Virginia Transit Association on Transportation Demand Management.
• Continuing to research items and provide comments for RideFinders Microtransit project to support GRTC.
• Participation in the planning process for the Association for Commuter Transportation Chesapeake Chapter event scheduled for

October.
• Continue to provide data to the Department of Rail and Public Transportation for the General Assembly report.
• Working on outreach to large employers that showed up on 30 Counties with the Worst Commute Times (researched the large

employers for the 13 counites and obtained addresses to those employers to send an employer outreach mailer)
• Working with GRTC and Mack Global on GRTC’s Telework plan.

8.2 Vanpool Program 
• K&K has 14 of 32 vans on the road.
• K&K started a new 7 passenger van from Richmond to DLA, Fort Belvoir for 3 months.
• K&K to start a new 7 passenger vanpool from Newport News with a stop in Mechanicsville Park and Ride to Pentagon and DC.
• RideEZ has 19 of 20 vans on the road.
• Forwarded DRPT FY22 Commuter Assistance Program for vanpools to RideEZ Tony Taylor for him to see what is needed in case he

wants to apply for FY23 grant.
• Provided input to Shared use Park and Ride Final Draft report.
• Emailed communications to K&K and RideEZ regarding sending in NTD reports prior to the 15th of the month and the earliest they

could provide the NTD data.
Ongoing Projects 
• City of Richmond on expanding their vanpool program (Aug 6th was last update from City contact saying they would get with me in

coming weeks as they were working on internal issues awaiting City’s response).
• Working with GRTC, displaced riders and Henrico County on Express Routes and vanpools.
• Coordinating with Department of Rail and Public Transportation on post COVID recovery for van start/save.
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date:  November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Monthly Ridership Report 

BACKGROUND: 

The “Monthly Ridership Report” (MRR), includes comparisons between the ridership of 
the current month, prior month, year prior (during COVID pandemic), and 2 years prior 
(pre-COVID pandemic) to allow for a broad understanding of overall ridership trends. 
The MRR includes ridership data for all services GRTC offers including fixed route 
(local, express, and Pulse), specialized transportation (CARE, CARE Plus, and CARE 
On-Demand), and Van Pool. Fixed route and specialized transportation data is shown 
as system-wide totals as well as broken down by mode, route, and jurisdiction; each of 
which has an accompanying supplemental graph to aid in visualizing trends. 

UPDATES: 

Ridership update for the month of October 2021 will be provided by Patricia Robinson. 

173



 (October 

2021)

 (September 

2021) MoM%

 (October 

2020)

YoY % 

(2020)

 (October 

2019)

YoY % 

(2019)

Fixed Route

Local-Fixed Route 590,676 563,040 4.91% 555,068 6.42% 593,640 -0.50%

- Richmond (fixed) 493,646 471,136 4.78% 467,998 5.48% 497,247 -0.72%

 -Henrico (fixed) 97,030 89,904 7.93% 87,071 11.44% 96,393 0.66%
Local-Pulse 156,401 150,455 3.95% 125,507 24.62% 222,916 -29.84%

Express Routes (total) 5,995 7,178 -16.48% 7,784 -22.98% 28,800 -79.18%

Total Fixed Route 753,072 720,673 4.50% 688,359 9.40% 856,007 -12.02%

Specialized Transportation

CARE 18,576 17,731 4.77% 16,008 16.04% 19,714 -5.77%

- Richmond (care) 10,906 10,342 5.45% 9,848 10.74% 12,179 -10.45%

- Chesterfield (care) 187 157 19.11% 131 42.75% n/a n/a

 -Henrico (care) 7,483 7,232 3.47% 6,029 24.12% 7,535 -0.69%

CARE Plus 4,343 4,033 7.69% 3,284 32.25% 5,487 -20.85%

- Richmond (care plus) 576 448 28.57% 352 63.64% 371 55.26%

 -Henrico (care plus) 3,767 3,585 5.08% 2,932 28.48% 5,116 -26.37%

CARE On-Demand 3,252 2,817 15.44% 2,076 56.65% 2,895 12.33%

- Richmond (care On-Demand) 1,331 1,216 9.46% 985 35.13% 1,185 12.32%

 -Henrico (care On-Demand) 1,921 1,601 19.99% 1,091 76.08% 1,710 12.34%

Total Specialized 26,171 24,581 6.47% 21,368 22.48% 28,096 -6.85%

 TOTAL FIXED ROUTE & SPECIALIZED 779,243 670,592 16.20% 709,727 9.79% 884,103 -11.86%

2022 FYTD

2021 FYTD  
(July '20 -

October '20)

YoY %  

(2020)

2020 FYTD  
(July '19 -

October '19)

YoY % 

(2019)

 (July '21 - 

September 

'21)

 (July '20 - 

September '20)

YoY %  

(2020)
 (July '19 - 

September '19)

YoY % 

(2019)

Fixed Route Van Pool

Local- Fixed Route 2,250,278 2,113,503 6.47% 2,289,298 -1.70% Van Pool 29,524 28,957 1.96% 97,364 -69.68%

Local- Pulse 575,914 465,887 23.62% 601,168 -4.20%

Express Routes (total) 32,731 21,353 53.28% 150,343 -78.23%

Total Fixed Route 2,858,922 2,600,743 9.93% 3,040,809 -5.98%

2022 FYTD

2021 FYTD  
(July '20 - 

September '20)

YoY %  

(2020)

2020 FYTD  
(July '19 - 

September '19)

YoY % 

(2019)

Specialized Transportation

CARE/CARE Plus 87,785 68,905 27.40% 97,653 -10.11% TOTAL TRIPS 2,987,244 2,706,292 10.38% 3,247,802 -8.02%

CARE On-Demand 11,013 7,687         43.27% 10,455        5.34%

Total Specialized 98,798 76,592 28.99% 108,880 -9.26%

 TOTAL FIXED ROUTE & SPECIALIZED 2,957,720 2,677,335 10.47% 3,150,438 -6.12%

July 2021passenger trips not reflected, no 

vendor reported data by time of report.

GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM

MONTHLY RIDERSHIP REPORT October 2021
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date:  November 16, 2021 
Item Title:  Safety Performance 

BACKGROUND: 

Tony Carter, Director of Risk Management, will provide an update on safety statistics for 
the month of October. 

Current Status: 

Performance Indicator Agency Averages October (GRTC) 

Miles Between Total NTD Defined Events 11,540 13,972 
NTD Defined Event Rate Per 1,000,000 miles 3.5 4.1 

(Averages taken from other agencies with similar amount of annual VRM to GRTC) 

Passenger, Pedestrian, Bicycle Incidents Bus-Related Care-Related 

Non-Preventable 6 0 
Passenger Incident 6 0 

Preventable 1 0 
Passenger Incident  0 0 
Pedestrian (reported) 1 0 
Bicycle (reported)  0 0 
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Traffic Incidents  Bus-Related    Care-Related 

Non-Preventable 17 3 
Vehicle Rear Ended Bus 2 0 

Preventable 13 2 

Fixed Objects (Tree Limbs, Street Signs) 8 2 
Improper Turning 3 0 
Bus Rear ended Vehicle 0 0 
Bus hit Parked Vehicle 2 0 

Definitions: 

Bicycle Incident: Bicycle comes into contact with the bus. 

Incident:  An event or occurrence of an accident or impact. 

National Transit Database (NTD) Defined Event: Collision involving on a roadway transit 
vehicle where any (including private) vehicle is towed away or passenger or driver is 
transported from scene for medical attention.  

Non-Preventable Passenger Incident:  A passenger trip, slip or fall, while boarding, 
alighting or on board the bus related to normal operating environment and pathway 
clearances and unrelated to GRTC vehicle movement.  

Non-Preventable Traffic Incident:  A motor vehicle collision in which the Operator 
committed no driving error and reacted reasonably to the error of others.  

Passenger Incidents: Any accident involving a passenger’s slip, trip or fall while 
boarding, alighting or on board the bus. 
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Pedestrian Incident: Pedestrian comes into contact with the bus. 

Preventable Passenger Incident:  A passenger trip, slip or fall, while boarding, alighting 
or on board the bus related to normal operating environment and pathway clearances in 
which the Operator did not do everything reasonable to avoid a collision, committed an 
error, or failed to react to the errors of others.  

Preventable Traffic Incident:  A motor vehicle collision in which the Operator did not do 
everything reasonable to avoid a collision, committed an error, or failed to react to the 
errors of others.  

VRM/Vehicle Revenue Miles: The number of miles traveled by transit vehicles in revenue 
service. 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Maintenance Performance 

BACKGROUND: 

GRTC maintains a 142 vehicles bus fleet for Fixed Route service and 88 vehicle van 
fleet for paratransit service. This includes a 20% spare fleet ratio which allows for 
regular preventative maintenance and unexpected fleet repairs without service 
disruptions.  

CURRENT STATUS: 

Our KPI’s for the month of October were 8,261 miles between road calls, we exceeded 
our goal which is 5,200 miles. Our PM” s for the month of October were at 90% with a 
goal of 80%. 

Currently, 26% of the fixed route fleet (21 buses) and 28% of the paratransit fleet (26 
vans) are down for service repairs with a spare ratio of 30%. The new vehicles have 
arrived and we are in the process of preparing them for service. 

We continue to clean and disinfect the entire fleet daily, as well as power wash our bus 
stops.  
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Uber Late Night Service Pilot 

BACKGROUND: 

On October 26, 2021, the GRTC Board of Directors approved staff’s recommendation to 
implement service changes in December 2021 to address the ongoing impacts to the 
service due to staffing shortages. Those changes would include less frequency on those 
low ridership routes. The most significant timeframe would be Monday thru Friday 
between the hours of 11:00 PM to 2:00 AM and from 5:00 AM to 6:00 AM.  

To supplement the lost service, GRTC would like to provide users with a fully subsidized 
Uber trip for riders to travel between stops. Travel is only permissible between GRTC 
bus stops during the day and time as previously outlined. 

HIGHLIGHTS: 

Under the Uber Late Night Service Pilot Program, customers would be able to obtain a 
ride by way of a voucher. The voucher can be used for one trip from one bus stop within 
the service area to another bus stop. Only two trips per customer within a 24-hour 
period would be allowed. 

This program is entirely supported with ARPA funds. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to execute pilot program for a period of 
six months not to exceed $250,000 with Uber for the provision of augmented fixed route 
service. 

Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Specialized Transportation Service 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2017, GRTC solicited for bids to provide specialized transit services for eligible 
paratransit riders within the GRTC service area. First Transit provided the most highly 
rated bid with an approved agreement for a three-year base term and two one-year 
optional extensions.  

On September 19, 2017, the GRTC Board of Directors approved staff’s 
recommendation to execute a three-year agreement with First Transit, Inc. for the 
provision of specialized transportation service. Under this approval, staff is required to 
return to the GRTC board for approval to exercise any of the option years in the 
agreement. 

HIGHLIGHTS: 

During the first three years of the base contract term and the first option year, First 
Transit has improved on the level of service previously provided to GRTC’s 
paratransit riders. However, staff has not been entirely satisfied with First Transit’s 
overall staffing levels, some of the operating metrics, and the plan to address the 
added overflow and capacity constraints of which staff is continuing to work with First 
Transit on addressing those issues. 

First Transit will only provide labor under the contract to include scheduling, hiring, 
communications, and reporting under the contract. This includes a trainer, scheduler, 
validator, management, reservationists, dispatchers, and operators. GRTC will 
continue to perform maintenance of all vehicles and fulfill all other capital 
requirements for paratransit service. GRTC will also maintain physical space for First 
Transit operations in support of this contract out of GRTC’s facilities. 

Payment will be made on a price per revenue hour basis. Each contract year including 
the option years has a revenue cap. The Contractor will not receive payment for 
revenue hours exceeding each year’s cap. The price for Option Year 2 is based on a 
rate adjustment to account for driver, staff, and insurance increases which is as 
follows: 
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Projected totals are based on estimated revenue hours of 138,000 in Option Year 2. 
GRTC’s actual costs for FY21 paratransit services was $ 4,727,137. The operating 
budget for paratransit services for FY22 has been set at $5,403,221. FY23 operating 
budget for paratransit services will include a funding level recommendation to account 
for these increases. 

This program is entirely supported with budgeted federal, state, and local operational 
funds and federal COVID relief funding. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to execute Option Year 2 with First 
Transit, Inc. including the rate increases for negotiated union contracted wages for 
FY21 and FY22 with a not to exceed a total contract value of $5,798,731 for the 
provision of specialized transportation service. 

_______________________ ________________________ 
Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary  Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 

Price Per 

Revenue Hr Projected Total

Option Year 2 Base Rate 37.78$     5,214,696$     

FY2021 Option Agreement 2.47$    340,929$    

Proposed Option Year 2 40.25$     5,555,625$     

FY2021 Retro Adj -$   243,106$   

Proposed Option Year 2 40.25$     5,798,731$     
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

Meeting Date:  November 16, 2021 
Item Title: Hastus Annual Maintenance and Support Agreement 

BACKGROUND: 

In April 2003, the Board of Directors authorized the CEO to execute a contract with Giro to 
purchase an automated scheduling, runcutting, rostering and operator management system. 
The system also included components for automated trip planning for customer service and 
the website.  

Each year, GRTC must renew the Software Maintenance Agreement with Giro. This 
agreement covers the cost of additional customizations to the Hastus software as well as any 
support requirements to address issues.  

HIGHLIGHTS: 

• Since this support can only be provided by Giro, GRTC has classified this purchase as a
sole source procurement. FTA regulations for sole source procurements require GRTC to
conduct an analysis to determine the quoted price is fair and reasonable. Staff conducted
the required analysis and has made such a determination.

• Annual licensing is applied each year to the maintenance and support contract allowing
GRTC to upgrade to a newer version of Hastus software at its convenience.

• The maintenance and support agreement includes unlimited telephone, electronic mail
support and ten days for modifications.

• 2022 maintenance and support fees are $161,936 an increase of 3% over last year’s cost
of $156,710.

• This purchase is fully funded with federal, and local grant funds.

Grant Federal (28%) State (68%) Local (4%) 

1458-2021-003 $45,342 $110,116 $6,477 
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RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to issue a purchase order to GIRO for a not to exceed 
amount of $161,936 to renew the maintenance and software support agreement for Hastus 2022. 

Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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